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Commercial Metals Company and subsidiaries manufacture, recycle and market steel and metal

products and related materials through a network of over 140 locations. The Manufacturing group

includes 4 steel minimills, 30 steel fabrication plants, 5 steel joist plants, a castellated and cellular

beam fabrication plant, 4 steel fence post manufacturing plants, a heat treating plant, a railcar

rebuilding facility, 28 construction-related product warehouses, a railroad salvage company and a

copper tube mill. Recycling operations include 44 metal processing plants across the Sunbelt.

Through its network of 15 marketing and distribution offices, 4 processing facilities and other

investments and joint ventures around the world, the Company markets, distributes and processes

primary and secondary metals, steel, ores, concentrates, industrial minerals, ferroalloys, chemicals

and industrial products used in a variety of industries.
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To our stockholders

Fiscal 2003:  It was an off-year, but our diversification enabled us to meet the challenges,
and our fourth quarter was much stronger.

For the year ended August 31, 2003, your Company reported net earnings of $18.9 million or $0.66

per diluted share on net sales of $2.9 billion. This compares with net earnings of $40.5 million or $1.43

per diluted share on net sales of $2.5 billion for the year ended August 31, 2002. This year’s results

included a LIFO expense of $6.1 million, or $0.21 cents per diluted share, compared with a $1.0

million expense, or $0.04 per diluted share, last year. Fourth quarter net earnings were $10.7 million

or $0.38 per diluted share on net sales of $805 million, compared with net earnings of $9.0 million or

$0.31 per diluted share on net sales of $682 million in the fourth quarter of 2002. The best news is

that the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 was the strongest quarter of the year, by far.

Throughout much of the year many of our key markets – particularly those for our Manufacturing 

segment – remained under pressure, although we did see improvement as the year progressed. While

public construction and institutional building held up relatively well, commercial construction in the

United States was off sharply for the second consecutive year which continued to impact our downstream

businesses as well as our mills. Additionally, business spending and the industrial side of the economy

remained soft. Similarly, many of the global markets remained weak. There were exceptions for us,

China and Australia being two notable examples. And during the second half of the fiscal year we

began to see some pickup in demand. We also began to see some of the expected net benefit from the

weaker U.S. dollar.

Specifically, results in our Manufacturing segment were well below par; conversely, it was a banner

year for our Recycling and Marketing and Distribution segments. For the fourth quarter, comparative

results were as follows:
Three Months Ended

(in millions) 8/31/03 8/31/02

Earnings before income taxes:

Manufacturing $ 13,076 $ 9,151

Recycling 4,659 3,927

Marketing and Distribution 6,662 5,896
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Financial Highlights

Year ended August 31,
(in thousands, except share data) 2003 2002 % Increase

Net sales $ 2,875,885 $ 2,479,941 16
Net earnings 18,904 40,525 (53)
Diluted earnings per share 0.66 1.43 (54)
Net working capital 399,426 379,105 5
Cash dividends per share 0.32 0.275 16
Cash dividends paid 9,039 7,521 20
Average diluted shares 

outstanding 28,605,595 28,275,291 1
Stockholders’ equity 506,933 501,306 1
Stockholders’ equity per share 18.11 17.58 3
Total assets 1,275,406 1,230,076 4

Tonnages Shipped

(short tons in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Steel mill rebar shipments 1,007 971 833 808 725
Steel mill structural and 

other shipments 1,277 1,200 1,070 1,045 960
Total mill tons shipped 2,284 2,171 1,903 1,853 1,685
Fab plant rebar shipments 663 559 535 472 391
Fab plant structural, joist 

and post shipments 365 425 451 483 450
Total fabrication tons shipped 1,028 984 986 955 841

Scrap metal tons processed 
and shipped 2,811 2,568 2,308 2,380 2,036
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Manufacturing segment hurt by margin squeezes. 

Net sales in Manufacturing were $1.34 billion for the year ended August 31, 2003, 2% lower than the

prior year. Earnings before income taxes were $20.0 million compared with $70.8 million the year

before. However, fourth quarter earnings before income taxes of $13.1 million represented the best

quarter of fiscal 2003. 

Steel mill price realizations were at extremely low levels for much of the year, while the increase in

input costs (scrap/supplies/utilities) outpaced the improvements in selling prices which occurred later

in the year. Tons melted decreased 1%, while tons rolled decreased 3%. Shipments, however, increased

5% to 2.3 million tons, although the increase was accounted for mainly by higher billet shipments.

Our average total mill selling price increased $9.50 per ton; however, the average scrap purchase price

rose much faster at $17 per ton. The fourth quarter to fourth quarter average selling price and shipments

for the mills were up 8% and 4%, respectively. The average total mill selling price rose 3% above the third

quarter of fiscal 2003. Fiscal 2003 year-to-date utility costs resulted in a significant increase compared

with fiscal 2002, namely $9.4 million higher. The large jump was primarily in the natural gas cost.

The fourth quarter increase was $2.7 million.

Our steel fabrication and related businesses were slightly profitable versus a solid earnings before

income taxes in the year earlier. Our average fabricated selling price dropped $72 per ton. Shipments from

our fab plants totaled 1.0 million tons, 4.5% more than the prior year.  Fabricated rebar shipments

were up significantly; however, other categories were mostly lower. Rebar fabrication, construction-

related products, steel fence post plants and heat treating reported solid profits, but joists and structural

steel fabrication recorded losses, primarily due to depressed selling prices. Additionally, fiscal 2002

included a pre-tax gain of $5.2 million on the sale of SMI-Owen Steel Company, as well as their higher

profits preceding the sale. Consolidation of administrative functions continued. Several acquisitions

were consummated during fiscal 2003 in rebar fabrication and construction-related products as we

broadened our geographic presence and market coverage. Fourth quarter comparisons showed higher

shipments because of an increase in fabricated rebar tonnage, but a significant decrease in the average

fabricated price. However, the average selling price was above the third quarter.

The Copper Tube division reported only a modest profit for the year ended August 31, 2003 compared

with earnings before income taxes of $5.1 million the previous year as net sales decreased 2%, and we also

experienced a margin squeeze in this business. Although residential construction held up relatively

well, other market sectors were significantly weaker. The average selling price of plumbing tube and

refrigeration tube was down over 7 cents per pound, whereas average copper scrap prices increased by

over 4 cents per pound. Metal spreads were correspondingly lower. Our copper tube shipments
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increased 4% compared with the previous fiscal year. Production and shipments were up in the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2003, but the average sales price decreased compared with the prior year’s quarter. The

average sales price, however, was higher than the third quarter.

Recycling: Best year since 1988. 

All four of our geographic regions performed excellently. Net sales dollars for 2003 increased 17% to

$441 million, led by a surge in steel scrap prices. Coupled with good cost controls, gross margins

jumped 24% and earnings before income taxes nearly tripled last year to $15.1 million. This was after

a pre-tax LIFO expense of $1.3 million. Nonferrous markets improved moderately year over year.

Versus last year, the average ferrous scrap sales price rose by $19 per short ton to $100 per short ton

and shipments were 10% higher at 1.64 million short tons. The average nonferrous scrap sales price

increased 8% compared with a year ago while nonferrous shipments declined 3%. Earnings before

income taxes for the fourth quarter were $4.7 million, featured by an average ferrous selling price of

$105 per ton. Total volume of scrap processed, including our CMC Steel Group processing operations,

equaled 2.81 million tons against 2.57 million tons last year.

An outstanding year for the Marketing and Distribution segment. 

Earnings before income taxes for this segment were $20.3 million for the year ended August 31, 2003,

compared with $11.9 million the prior year. Net sales leaped 48% to $1.15 billion in 2003, with the

predominant increase outside the U.S. During the year, international steel prices for flat-rolled products

rose for several quarters and then weakened, mainly because of a pullback in China, but then began to

increase again during the fourth quarter. Prices for long products rose much more slowly. Our steel

volume increased, other than for imports into the U.S. Our business in the U.S. reflected the sub-par

economy, weaker U.S. dollar and import duties. Influenced by similar factors, nonferrous semis were

weaker with respect to volume, price and margins. However, sales and margins for ores, minerals,

ferroalloys and special metals were generally higher. As previously mentioned, better demand in several

of our key markets, including that for processed material, contributed to the overall improved results. 

Our service centers in Australia continued to perform well, and our relatively new joint venture

Europickling facility in Belgium reached record output levels and became profitable. Meanwhile, the

joint venture arrangements with our 11% investee Trinecke Zelezarny are going well. On July 22, 2003,

we announced that a subsidiary had entered into a definitive agreement to purchase a controlling interest

in Huta Zawiercie, a Polish steel minimill (the purchase is subject to the approval of various Polish

regulatory agencies and satisfaction of certain conditions, and we anticipate closing by December 15,

2003). Rising freight rates were an issue as the year progressed. The implementation of new information



6

N E T  S A L E S

Manufacturing 46%

Recycling 15%

Marketing 39%

2003

E A R N I N G S  B E F O R E

I N C O M E  T A X E S

Manufacturing 36%

Recycling 27%

Marketing 37%

2003

C A P I T A L

E X P E N D I T U R E S

Manufacturing 79%

Recycling 10%

Marketing 11%

2003

D E P R E C I A T I O N

A N D  A M O R T I Z A T I O N

Manufacturing 82%

Recycling 13%

Marketing 5%

2003

6



7

systems continued to be a burden at several of our divisions, but will enhance significantly our systems

capability when the conversion is finished early in fiscal 2004. Fourth quarter earnings before income

taxes was a solid $6.7 million, 13% above fiscal 2002’s very strong fourth quarter. 

Capital investment will be up because of the Polish mill acquisition. 

Capital spending in fiscal 2003 totaled $63 million including acquisitions. The capital budget for fiscal

2004 is $61 million excluding the $50 million acquisition cost of the 71.1% of the shares of Huta

Zawiercie. Expenditures are spread across the segments with the bulk in steel manufacturing.

Our financial position remained strong. 

At the end of 2003, our stockholders’ equity was $507 million or $18.11 per share. Year-end net working

capital was $399 million and the current ratio 1.9. Our EBITDA to interest coverage remained strong.

Long-term debt as a percentage of total capitalization was 31.6%, and the ratio of total debt to total

capitalization plus short-term debt stood at 32.9%. During the year we repurchased 951,410 shares of

CMC stock at an average price of $15.36 per share. For the year we paid quarterly cash dividends totaling

$0.32 cents per share on common stock, including our 155th consecutive quarterly cash dividend.

On August 8, 2003, we signed a new three year revolving credit agreement for $275 million with a

group of sixteen banks. As with previous agreements, the principal function of this agreement is to

back up our commercial paper program.

Subsequent to year end, on November 12, 2003, we closed a successful ten year, $200 million

5.625% bond offering.  The proceeds funded the retirement of $89 million of our $100 million of

bonds otherwise due in 2005, the anticipated purchase of the shares of Huta Zawiercie, and other

general corporate uses.

The outlook is better!

We expect fiscal 2004 to be significantly better than fiscal 2003, due both to internal measures that we

have taken to reduce costs and increase productivity, as well as better economic conditions this fiscal year

amid increasing signs of a recovery, most apparent for global manufacturing. In the U.S. especially, we

are seeing increasing signs of the pickup in the manufacturing sector and pockets of improvement in

construction, although office, lodging and industrial construction will be slower to recover.

Additionally, capital goods orders are higher. Asia is relatively strong and Europe is showing signs of

pulling out of its slump, albeit inconsistently.

We anticipate better performance in our Manufacturing segment via improved metal spreads and

increases in production, shipments and prices. We have implemented several steel mill product price
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increases on most of our products; the cumulative announced price increases are $70 per ton for 

merchant bar and $55 per ton for reinforcing bar. These increases should become fully effective during

the first half of fiscal 2004 and help restore margins for our steel mills. We expect margins in several of

our downstream businesses to be compressed earlier in the year followed by an expansion of margins.

Strong demand for steel scrap and nonferrous metal scrap combined with the relatively weak U.S.

dollar will lend support to our Recycling segment. Marketing and Distribution profits are expected to

remain very good, better than last year in the U.S. divisions but not quite as strong in the International

divisions. Prices generally should be firm with good volume. We anticipate that overall results will be

better in the second half of the fiscal year than in the first half.

Future prospects are good!

We remain well positioned, both in the U.S. and elsewhere. Long term, we expect stronger demand,

including the increased possibility of a recovery in demand throughout the major economic blocs and

continued growth in developing countries. Emerging countries often exhibit a higher growth rate for steel

and nonferrous metals consumption. The supply/demand equation is shifting toward Asia – especially

China – as well as Central and Eastern Europe. As an example, China now consumes about one quarter

of the world’s steel and produces nearly one quarter of global crude steel output. Although China

appears to be expanding its steel production too quickly, some analysts maintain that China's growth

will cause a positive inflection in steel and nonferrous metals demand on a global basis, even though

all expect a correction during the next several years. Meanwhile, our approach remains to get closer to

our customers in the supply chain wherever they are located.
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Cautionary statement concerning forward-looking comments.

This letter to stockholders contains forward-looking statements regarding the outlook for the

Company’s financial results including net earnings, product pricing and demand, production rates,

input costs, information systems capabilities, capital expenditures, cost reduction and productivity

efforts, currency effects, and general global market conditions. These forward-looking statements 

generally can be identified by phrases such as the Company or its management “expects,” “anticipates,”

“believe,” “ought,” “should,” “could,” “likely,” “appears,” “projected,” “forecast,” or other words or

phrases of similar impact. There is inherent risk and uncertainty in any forward-looking statements.

Variances will occur and some could be materially different from management’s current opinion.

Developments that could impact the Company’s expectations include interest rate changes, 

construction activity, litigation claims and settlements, difficulties or delays in the execution of 

construction contracts resulting in cost overruns or contract disputes, metals pricing over which the

Company exerts little influence, increased capacity and product availability from competing steel 

minimills and other steel suppliers including import quantities and pricing, court decisions, industry

consolidation or changes in production capacity or utilization, global factors including credit availability,

currency fluctuations, scrap, energy, insurance and supply prices and decisions by governments impacting

the level of steel imports and pace of overall economic activity.

Stanley A. Rabin
Chairman, President

and Chief Executive Officer

November 12, 2003
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MANUFACTURING
CMC’s Manufacturing seg-
ment has a steel mill capacity
of 2.3 million tons, steel 
fabrication capacity of more
than 900,000 tons, and 
copper tube mill capacity 
of 75 million pounds.
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CMC Steel Group

The CMC Steel Group consists of four steel minimills,

30 steel fabrication plants, five steel joist plants, a

castellated and cellular beam fabricator, four steel

fence post manufacturing plants, a heat treating

plant, a railcar rebuilding facility, 28 construction-

related product warehouses, ten scrap processing

facilities and a railroad salvage company. 

Commercial and industrial construction, typically

major markets for the CMC Steel Group, were among

the weakest segments of the economy during fiscal

2003. Additionally, historically sharp price surges

in energy and scrap squeezed margins significantly.

However, our vertical integration from scrap procurement to product distribution once again 

provided market opportunities allowing for better overall performance than might have otherwise been

expected. Mill product lines outperformed bar mill competitors. A strong local management structure

provided a system to react quickly to opportunities. Human resources development through safety and

wellness programs and supervisor training continued. Ongoing growth was achieved through the

acquisition of additional fabricating and distribution companies as well as through progress in new

products and processes. Though profits were down from last year’s solid performance, these strengths

allowed the CMC Steel Group to weather the year’s economic downturn and rising input costs better

than most of our competitors. 

The CMC Steel Group continued to be active in Washington, D.C. with a coalition of other steel 

companies in support of the President’s initiative to impose a three-year schedule for reducing tariffs

to allow time for the industry to restructure. The Section 201 tariffs, set in March 2002, offered relief

from the surge of unfairly traded steel imports that severely depressed market prices for rolled steel

products. The tariffs have provided much needed relief for long products by reducing import volume

and allowing prices to stabilize. 

Management continues to explore options regarding industry consolidation consistent with the

Company’s strategy. This analysis of acquisition prospects, coupled with an ongoing review of existing

affiliates, is designed to strengthen our market presence and enhance the bottom line.

Minimill Operations

SMI-Texas set all time records in tons melted and shipped. Squeezed margins created a focus on

improving efficiencies, maintaining customer satisfaction and developing higher margin markets.
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Increased highway system investments by the State of Texas bode well for strong markets in the

foreseeable future. The focus on special bar quality (SBQ) products has been successful in developing a

larger customer base in a higher margin market segment. The outlook for fiscal 2004 is for a rebound

from fiscal 2003’s subpar profit performance with a strong production year coupled with an anticipated

uptick in pricing levels.

Continuing its recovery toward previous profitability levels, SMI-Alabama experienced record melt

production and finished good shipments in fiscal 2003. Significant capital expenditures in the mill and

melt shop, including work on the electromagnetic mold stirring station, will result in improved 

productivity and quality as well as open new markets for higher margin products.

SMI-South Carolina offset weakened demand by enhancing capabilities. With continued efforts to

produce higher margin products for the special bar quality (SBQ) market and by completing

ISO9001:2000 certification, the South Carolina mill is positioning itself for solid profitability. Another

significant fiscal 2003 accomplishment was the plant’s one million manhours without a lost-time 

accident achieved in October 2002. For fiscal 2004, coordinated management of the Alabama and

South Carolina sales’ staff will utilize the efficiencies of both mills and present a combined product

offering to their collective customer base.

With innovative, patented process improvements, SMI-Arkansas dramatically increased mill yield

and reduced supply costs in route to a year with record special section shipments. The Magnolia mill

is scheduled to implement ISO-9000 certification in December 2003. The Southern Post Company had

a challenging year with increased costs, imports and a down farm economy. SMI Rail more than doubled

their fiscal 2003 business plan and set an all-time record profit year since joining the CMC Steel Group

in 1997. 

Rebar and Structural Steel Fabrication

The CMC Steel Group's rebar fabrication branches reported record sales, production and shipments.

Acquisitions of fabrication shops in south Florida and central Texas, along with fabrication/placing

operations in mid-state California and Arizona,

contributed to the overall growth. However, profits

were down over fiscal 2002 performance as margins

were squeezed by lower selling prices and higher

material costs.

In structural steel fabrication, fiscal 2003 marked

the third consecutive declining year in national

demand. Correspondingly, the CMC Steel Group’s

structural fabricating companies struggled to

maintain profitability. Cost reductions and a

strengthening backlog realized during the fourth

quarter will position the structural businesses for a

return to profitability in fiscal 2004. 
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Joist Division

The CMC Steel Group’s joist manufacturers endured a tough year marked by price deterioration and a

33% drop in domestic joist consumption. Spurred by improved booking activity and pricing in the

last quarter of fiscal 2003, the outlook for fiscal 2004 is for a return to profitability at each plant.

Construction-Related Products

In ten years since acquiring four Shepler’s operations, the Construction-Related Products (CRP) group

has continued to grow in scope and significance to the CMC Steel Group’s vertical integration and 

profitability. With the addition of two new locations, there are now 28 CRP operations in the south

central and south Atlantic regions. In April, the Company acquired the operating assets of the Symons

Denver facility. A strong rental facility for the

Rocky Mountain states since 1965, the Denver

location puts Shepler’s in a good position to grow

west with forming and shoring.

Scrap Yards

The Texas mega-shredder provided an ever increasing

amount of high quality raw material for the Texas

mill at a time when feedstock for electric arc furnaces

was in short supply and expensive. The South

Carolina based scrap group achieved records in 

production and profitability. Significant capital

improvements included a new inline Eddy Current

system to improve residue quality and recovery at

the Lexington shredder and a nonferrous baler in

Augusta that will enable mill direct shipments.

Additional Operations

Spray Forming International (SFI) was commissioned in fiscal 2002 to metallurgically bond stainless

steel to carbon steel in producing stainless clad billets. This product will provide engineers a cost-effective,

high quality, corrosion resistant product to help extend bridge and road life. Commercial shipments

began in April 2003 to an enthusiastic market reception.

Allegheny Heat Treating, the CMC Steel Group’s heat treating facility located in Chicora,

Pennsylvania, continued its diversification initiative resulting in new products representing over 50%

of fiscal 2003 production tons. Impact Metal Products completed its first full fiscal year of operation

as a specialized sales organization for heat treated products and higher margin mill products.
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Driven by the success of satellite repair shops,

Safety Railway Service (SRS) returned to profitability

in the last half of fiscal 2003. The low overhead,

strong margin operations are located at customer

sites to provide small scale repairs while offering

customers quick service and better asset utilization.

Outlook

Economic conditions appear primed for recovery in

fiscal 2004. The CMC Steel Group is prepared to take

advantage of a market upturn, yet more importantly

will continue to focus on properly managing our

businesses to react to customer needs, reduce costs,

maximize efficiencies and deliver strong returns.

Although profitability was difficult in fiscal 2003, the CMC Steel Group’s solid track record of continued

growth continues. The Company and its people continue to be recognized as among the best in the

steel industry.

Howell Metal Company

Howell Metal Company manufactures copper tubing for the plumbing, air conditioning and

refrigeration industries. This fully integrated copper minimill utilizes both secondary and virgin

copper in the manufacturing process. The copper is melted, cast, extruded and drawn into water

and refrigeration tubing.

Purchasing patterns continue to evolve as wholesalers

look at value-added services in the marketplace. Regional

warehouses delivering smaller quantities to the wholesaler

has become the normal distribution matrix that most

wholesalers utilize. Howell operates three warehouses

strategically located on the East Coast to meet the ever-

changing needs of the plumbing wholesale market. 

Howell has increased its marketing territory west of the

Mississippi. This will help water tube, refrigeration tube and

line-set sales in fiscal 2004. Our sales continue to increase as

production in mill three begins a third shift. Our sales staff

and distribution facilities stand ready to meet the demand of

the new mill.
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RECYCLING
CMC is one of the largest
processors of nonferrous
scrap metals in the United
States and one the nation’s
largest regional processors 
of ferrous scrap metals.
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Secondary Metals Processing Division

In the same manner as last year, each quarter of 

fiscal 2003 improved upon the results of the previous

quarter of fiscal 2002. Ferrous scrap continued to

lead the banner year experienced by the Division. 

Increased global steel production, led by China’s

record steel production, forced upward pressure on

ferrous scrap prices worldwide. In concert with that,

U.S. ferrous scrap exports, mainly to Asia, also kept

ferrous scrap prices strong in the domestic market.

The weakening of the dollar and the continued

restrictions placed on various steel products

through the Administration’s import tariffs also

assisted scrap prices in maintaining its strength in the market.

Our plants processed about 10% more ferrous scrap during fiscal 2003, exceeding 1.6 million tons

for the first time. Including direct shipments from others sold by us, we exceeded 1.7 million tons.

Total nonferrous scrap processed and sold by us during fiscal 2003 remained relatively flat with fiscal

2002 at 231,000 tons. On an F.O.B. basis, ferrous prices climbed to an average price of $100 per short

ton from last fiscal year’s comparable price of almost $81 per short ton, or about 23%. Nonferrous prices

increased about 8% or more than $74 per short ton.

Our net sales of $441 million were the highest since

fiscal 1997 when sales were only $2 million higher.

Operationally, this was our best year since 1988.
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All four regions turned in an excellent year with

all plants contributing to our strong year. The ferrous

shredder plants led the way with higher volume

and margin contribution. Another area of growth

for our Division was in the expansion of the

National Accounts we have under contract. Our

biggest award that was signed near our fiscal year

end was the contract for us to administer the

Carrier account nationally. Carrier is one of the

major divisions of United Technologies. We extend

our thanks and gratitude to the confidence given to

us to manage Carrier’s industrial scrap in this

multi-year contract.

We remain hopeful that fiscal 2004 will see prices

staying similar or becoming marginally higher than current markets, and that our performance will be

similar to this year’s contribution. The chief intangible on the ferrous side will be the expected continued

growth of the steel industry in China. It is estimated that China will add 25 million tons to its capacity,

making total production almost 250 million tons. The steel industry in China currently approaches

25% of the world’s production. While interest rates remain low by historical standards, there may be

some upward pressure. It is believed this is due to improved economic conditions in the U.S. economy.

If that is truly the case, then our forecast for a good fiscal 2004 should prevail.



20

MARKETING AND 
DISTRIBUTION
CMC’s Marketing and Distribution
segment markets steel, nonferrous
semis, primary and secondary
metals and industrial raw materials
through a global network of 15
offices, four processing facilities
and other investments and joint
ventures around the world.
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Marketing and Distribution

The Marketing and Distribution segment consists of

four divisions: • Cometals Division • Commonwealth

Metal Division • Dallas Trading Division and 

• International Division.

We have always had a global focus and strategy.

More recently, we have expanded our global presence

in the growth markets of China and Central Eastern

Europe. We have set up new offices in these markets

with plans for fixed asset investments.

Fiscal 2003 was a record year for our operations’

earnings before income taxes. Our strategy of

focusing on value-added businesses and services to

complement our traditional trading business produced outstanding results in fiscal 2003. This was

mainly led by our International Division with strong growth in the major regions of Asia (in particular

China), Australia and Europe. Our diversification, both geographically and by product lines, continues

to underpin our marketing strengths. The discipline of our people and adherence to the CMC value

system underscores our success. While it is difficult to keep breaking records, we are in excellent shape

to have a very strong fiscal 2004.

Cometals Division

Cometals Division markets and distributes minerals, ores, refractories, alloys and industrial raw 

materials in North America, China, Europe and the CIS. With a very diversified product mix and good

global coverage, Cometals achieved a record year in terms of sales and gross margins. Furthermore, our

order book for fiscal 2004 looks strong. 

Our historical commitment to China is paying dividends. In many of the products handled by

Cometals, China is recognized around the world as a reliable, high quality supplier. Our long-term

association with Chinese producers of raw materials has made us a leader in many industries. During

the past year we continued our efforts to develop additional markets for downstream products. Our

exports from China continue to grow, but we are limited due to increased domestic demand in China

and some anti-dumping issues in the U.S. and Europe. We are making good progress in expanding our

presence globally by introducing and selling these Chinese products to new accounts in the CIS, Latin

America and Europe. 

The impressive growth of the Chinese economy and the unprecedented expansion of its steel 

production helped us increase our sales volume into China. In fact, this segment of our business 

represents our greatest growth potential. We are now sourcing different products for sales into China

from the Americas, the CIS and Europe, and we are developing new sources in other geographies. We

plan to increase our marketing activities in China as this market continues to expand. 
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During fiscal 2003, we made further progress in the CIS and as the economies of Russia and other

countries continue to expand in a stable and consistent pattern, we see additional growth opportunities

for our Division. 

Cometals Division operates out of four locations: Fort Lee, Beijing, Moscow and Brussels. Our 

experienced and energetic team is ready and committed to help us achieve even better results in future

years. Our new information system which we introduced during fiscal 2003 is expected to efficiently

handle the much larger volume of business projected for fiscal 2004 and beyond. 

Commonwealth Metal Division

Commonwealth Metal Division markets a broad spectrum of specialty products including aluminum,

copper and stainless steel in many semi-fabricated forms and shapes. In close cooperation with 

producers in over 35 countries around the world, Commonwealth serves as a vital link in the metal

supply chain to distributors and manufacturers throughout North America.

Over the course of fiscal 2003, Commonwealth Division staged a rebound despite a slow and weak

recovery in most metal markets and industrial sectors that consume our products. During the same

period, we successfully implemented a new, integrated information system. These operational

improvements, coupled with improved market conditions, bode well for the Division’s performance in

fiscal 2004.

Our core competency remains our ability to provide our global supply partners with effective 

distribution channels along with market introduction and development capacities. In addition,

Commonwealth continues to enlarge our unique product range, offering our customers a diversity of

premier sources and materials, obtainable through a single point of procurement. Likewise, we expanded

our third major line, stainless steel, making inroads in this complimentary specialty product. In these

times of consolidating domestic supply, customers benefit by our global reach and support services.

Following the trend to process more metal in

overseas markets, Commonwealth launched initiatives

to project exports to major strategic markets. As

more basic manufacturing shifts abroad, we offer

the same breadth of products and depth of sources

to markets in NAFTA and especially China. Our

market extensions will favorably position us for

future growth in an increasingly fluid and global

metal marketplace.

The future outlook appears bright as the business

climate improves and capital spending revives in

the U.S. Furthermore, as volume picks up, we are

well positioned to derive significant gains from the

substantial systems and operational improvements
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made over the past few years. Commonwealth Metal stands poised and ready to embrace the future

challenges and opportunities within our market niche.

Dallas Trading

The Dallas Trading Division markets and distributes steel semi-finished long and flat products, 

primary aluminum and aluminum semi-finished flat rolled and extruded products, nonferrous scrap,

steel scrap and steel re-rolling stock into the Americas and other global markets from a diverse base of

international and domestic sources. We provide our customers and suppliers with professional 

marketing, trading, financial and logistical services.

The depth of our trading staff, as well as our product and geographic diversity, contributed to another

profitable year. However, the sluggish U.S. economy, the weak U.S. dollar, and Section 201 anti-

dumping/countervailing duty (AD/CVD) trade restrictions against our traditional sources continue to

challenge our short term success. With U.S. inventory levels currently quite low, any upturn in the

economy could trigger strong buying which would positively impact our results.

We made significant progress with our information system including improved management reports

and further automation of our procedures. When ISO accreditation expires in December 2003, we will

replace it with a more stringent Dallas Trading Quality System, one that will be more applicable to

our business. 

We continued our trader trainee program and added several experienced traders to help us diversify

our products, geographical service and customer base. In addition, we added key personnel to our

administrative staff to keep up with our ever-changing business.

Fiscal 2003 results did not reach the fiscal 2002 levels, yet the Dallas Trading team is optimistically

working for increased returns in the coming year.

International Division

Commercial Metals Company has operated globally

since the early 1960’s, and our International 

business covers Europe, Asia and Australia. Our

main product is steel; however, in certain regions

we market and distribute industrial products, raw

materials and special metals. We have strategic, value-

added investments in processing, heat treatment,

warehousing and marketing joint ventures with

suppliers. Our investments in fiscal 2004 will expand

to steelmaking in Eastern Europe with the expected

closing of our acquisition of Huta Zawiercie. 
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Our European operations performed very successfully

with record results in earnings before income taxes. Due

to our disciplined approach to trading and careful

contract execution, the international marketing

business benefited from the brisk, but volatile

demand and price development in the international

markets. The United Kingdom showed a remarkable

turnaround, reaping the benefits of a strategy

focused on selective marketing and first-class service. 

Our joint venture business with the Czech Steel

Mill, Trinecke Zelezarny, continues its remarkable

performance and has succeeded in establishing

Trinecke Zelezarny as one of the leading producers

of higher grade wire rod and special quality bars in Europe. Europickling, our picking and oiling joint

venture in Belgium, is now firmly and successfully established working three shifts in its second full

year of operation. 

Our commitment to the growing markets in Central Europe is underlined by having signed the 

purchase agreement for an acquisition of 71.1% of the shares of the Polish long products steel mill,

Huta Zawiercie. We see this as the logical next step of our European marketing and distribution strategy

investing into value-added growth businesses with a leading market position. 

In Asia we had an excellent year. We expanded sourcing from Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, Taiwan,

China and Japan. We sold into China, Vietnam, Thailand, Taiwan, Korea and Japan. Asia remains very

important as a major steel source for our marketing and distribution businesses in Australia, the U.S.

and Europe. 

China today is the key market in Asia, and in fiscal 2004 we will be expanding our presence through

a new office in Guangzhou. We are actively engaged in planning and feasibility studies on opening a steel

service center and distribution business in Southern China. We are well placed to grow our businesses

in Asia. 

Our Australian operations had a second consecutive record year with all businesses performing well.

CMC (Australia) is the leading steel import supplier managing the supply chain from steel mill to 

customer. We provide a similar function in raw material supply to steel mills, foundries and smelters.

We also own Coil Steels Group, a steel distribution and service center business drawing local supply

from BHP Steel. This business had a strong year with record sales and profit. During fiscal 2003 Coil

Steels Group acquired Horan Sheet & Coil and successfully merged it into our Sydney operations. Further

bolt on acquisitions are under review. The Australian economy outperformed most of our trading

partners in fiscal 2003, and we are quietly optimistic fiscal 2004 will be similar and allow us to deliver

sound results to the Company.
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Manufacturing Management (left to right) 

Larry Olschwanger, Alan Postel, Harry J. Heinkele, Richard L. Goulde, Joseph R. Reichard, Robert J. Melendi, Rocky Adams, Jim Vermillion, 
Carl J. Nastoupil, Chuck Grossman

Recycling Management (left to right) 

Marketing and Distribution Management (left to right) 

Kevin S. Aitken, Murray R. McClean, Hanns Zöllner, J. Matthew Kramer, Eliezer Skornicki, Eugene L. Vastola

CMC Steel Group: Russell Rinn, Clyde P. Selig, Jeff H. Selig, Binh K. Huynh; Howell Metal Company: A. Leo Howell
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(dollars in thousands, except share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000

Operations

Net sales $  2,875,885 $  2,479,941 $  2,470,133 $  2,661,420
Net earnings 18,904 40,525 23,772 44,590
Income taxes 11,490 22,613 14,643 26,070
Earnings before income taxes 30,394 63,138 38,415 70,660
Interest expense 15,338 18,708 27,608 27,319
Depreciation and amortization 61,203 61,579 67,272 66,583
EBITDA* 106,935 143,425 133,295 164,562
EBITDA/interest expense 7.0 7.7 4.8 6.0
Effective tax rate 37.8% 35.8% 38.1% 36.9%

Balance Sheet Information

Cash and cash equivalents 75,058 124,397 56,021 20,057
Accounts receivable 397,490 350,885 297,611 352,203
Inventories 310,816 268,040 223,859 270,368
Total current assets 844,417 794,252 623,013 702,405
Property, plant and equipment

Original cost 963,224 921,779 896,896 856,128
Net of depreciation and amortization 374,382 378,155 395,851 407,512
Capital expenditures 55,205 54,057 53,022 69,627

Total assets 1,275,406 1,230,076 1,081,946 1,170,092
Commercial paper — — — 79,000
Notes payable — — 3,793 13,466
Total current liabilities 444,991 415,147 349,199 438,231
Net working capital 399,426 379,105 273,814 264,174
Current ratio 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6
Acid test ratio 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8
Long-term debt 254,997 255,969 251,638 261,884
Long-term debt as a percent 

of total capitalization** 31.6% 32.4% 35.2% 36.8%
Total debt/total capitalization

plus short-term debt** 32.9% 32.5% 36.4% 44.7%
Deferred income taxes 44,419 32,813 30,405 31,131
Total stockholders’ equity 506,933 501,306 433,094 418,805
Total capitalization** 806,349 790,088 715,137 711,821
Return on beginning stockholders’ equity 3.8% 9.4% 5.7% 10.7%
Stockholders’ equity per share*** 18.11 17.58 16.56 15.90

Share Information

Diluted earnings per share*** 0.66 1.43 0.90 1.56
Stock dividends/splits per share — 100% — —
Cash dividends per share of common stock*** 0.32 0.275 0.26 0.26
Total cash dividends paid 9,039 7,521 6,780 7,304
Average diluted common shares*** 28,605,595 28,275,291 26,320,988 28,500,170

Other Data

Number of employees at year-end 7,778 7,659 7,956 8,379
Stockholders of record at year-end 2,640 2,271 2,526 2,691

* EBITDA = earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization

** Total capitalization = long-term debt + deferred income taxes + total stockholders’ equity 

*** Restated for stock splits

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

$  2,251,442 $  2,367,569 $  2,258,388 $  2,322,363 $  2,116,779 $  1,666,234 $  1,568,506
46,974 42,714 38,605 46,024 38,208 26,170 21,661
27,829 25,355 22,350 26,897 19,800 14,737 13,400
74,803 68,069 60,955 72,921 58,008 40,907 35,061
19,650 18,055 14,637 15,822 15,246 9,271 9,397
52,054 47,460 43,720 41,599 38,134 30,143 27,361

146,507 133,584 119,312 130,342 111,388 80,321 71,819
7.5 7.4 8.2 8.2 7.3 8.7 7.6

37.2% 37.2% 36.7% 36.9% 34.1% 36.0% 38.2%

44,665 30,985 32,998 24,260 21,018 38,269 47,439
297,664 318,655 289,735 294,611 268,657 228,035 163,387
247,154 257,231 220,644 186,201 208,114 133,748 136,601
643,376 673,500 585,276 539,483 534,105 446,085 398,495

804,247 680,401 570,604 506,969 456,705 370,556 327,166
402,272 318,462 247,261 222,710 209,739 156,808 139,323
141,752 119,915 70,955 47,982 39,311 48,152 37,613

1,079,074 1,002,617 839,061 766,756 748,103 604,877 541,961
10,000 40,000 — — — 20,000 —
4,382 60,809 — — — 21,000 —

357,648 426,063 278,144 264,073 268,382 270,966 215,030
285,728 247,437 307,132 275,410 265,723 175,119 183,465

1.8 1.6 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.6 1.9
1.0 .8 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1

265,590 173,789 185,211 146,506 158,004 72,061 76,737

37.6% 30.1% 33.0% 29.1% 32.9% 21.6% 23.5%

39.6% 41.5% 34.4% 30.7% 35.5% 39.2% 32.9%
23,263 21,376 20,834 21,044 18,553 19,077 14,773

418,312 381,389 354,872 335,133 303,164 242,773 235,421
707,165 576,554 560,917 502,683 479,721 333,911 326,931

12.3% 12.0% 11.5% 15.2% 15.7% 11.1% 10.2%
14.52 13.09 12.02 11.10 9.86 8.51 7.98

1.61 1.41 1.27 1.51 1.26 0.88 0.73
— — — — — 33% —

0.26 0.26 0.26 0.24 0.24 0.23 0.20
7,540 7,717 7,777 7,246 7,211 6,705 5,635

29,253,080 30,241,572 30,439,454 30,552,316 30,414,172 29,886,246 29,767,570

7,630 7,376 7,103 6,681 6,272 4,314 3,904
2,550 2,672 2,674 2,593 2,256 2,190 1,973
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We manufacture, recycle, market and distribute steel
and metal products through a network of over 140
locations in the United States and internationally. 

Manufacturing Operations

We conduct our manufacturing operations through the
following:
• 4 steel mills, commonly referred to as “minimills,”

that produce reinforcing bar, angles, flats, small
beams, rounds, fence post sections and other shapes

• 30 steel plants that bend, cut and fabricate steel, pri-
marily reinforcing bar and angles

• 1 plant that produces copper tubing
• 28 warehouses that sell or rent supplies for the

installation of concrete
• 6 plants that produce special sections for floors and

ceiling support
• 4 plants that produce steel fence posts
• 1 plant that treats steel with heat to strengthen and

provide flexibility
• 1 plant that rebuilds railcars
• 1 railroad salvage company

Recycling Operations

We conduct our recycling operations through 44 metal
processing plants located in the states of Texas, South
Carolina, Florida, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Kansas,
Missouri, Tennessee, Louisiana and Georgia.

Marketing and Distribution Operations

We market and distribute steel, copper and aluminum
coil, sheet and tubing, ores, metal concentrates, indus-
trial minerals, ferroalloys and chemicals through our
network of 15 marketing and distribution offices, 4
processing facilities and joint ventures around the
world. Our customers use these products in a variety
of industries.

You should read this management’s discussion and
analysis in connection with your review of our consoli-
dated audited financial statements and the
accompanying footnotes.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following are important accounting policies, esti-
mates and assumptions that you should understand as
you review our financial statements. We apply these

accounting policies and make these estimates and
assumptions to prepare financial statements under
generally accepted accounting principles. Our use of
these accounting policies, estimates and assumptions
affects our results of operations and our reported
amounts of assets and liabilities. Where we have used
estimates or assumptions, actual results could differ
significantly from our estimates.

Revenue Recognition Generally, we recognize sales
when title passes. For a few of our steel fabrication
operations, we recognize net sales and profits from cer-
tain long-term fixed price contracts by the
percentage-of-completion method. In determining the
amount of net sales to recognize, we estimate the total
costs and profits expected to be recorded for the con-
tract term and the recoverability of costs related to
change orders. These estimates could change, resulting
in changes in our earnings.

Contingencies We make accruals as needed for litiga-
tion, administrative proceedings, government
investigations (including environmental matters), and
contract disputes. We base our environmental liabilities
on estimates regarding the number of sites for which
we will be responsible, the scope and cost of work to be
performed at each site, the portion of costs that we
expect we will share with other parties and the timing
of the remediation. Where timing of expenditures can
be reliably estimated, we discount amounts to reflect
our cost of capital over time. We record these and other
contingent liabilities when they are probable and when
we can reasonably estimate the amount of loss. Where
timing and amounts cannot be precisely estimated, we
estimate a range, and we recognize the low end of the
range without discounting. Also, see Note 9, 
Commitments and Contingencies, to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2003.

Inventory Cost We determine inventory cost for most
domestic inventories by the last-in, first-out method, or
LIFO. At the end of each quarter, we estimate both
inventory quantities and costs that we expect at the end
of the fiscal year for these LIFO calculations, and we
record an amount on a pro-rata basis. These estimates
could vary substantially from the actual year-end
results, causing an adjustment to cost of goods sold. See
Note 14, Quarterly Financial Data, to the consolidated
financial statements. We record all inventories at the
lower of their cost or market value.

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Property, Plant and Equipment Our manufacturing
and recycling businesses are capital intensive. We eval-
uate the value of these assets and other long-lived assets
whenever a change in circumstances indicates that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Some of the esti-
mated values for assets that we currently use in our
operations utilize judgments and assumptions of future
undiscounted cash flows that the assets will produce. If
these assets were for sale, our estimates of their values
could be significantly different because of market con-
ditions, specific transaction terms and a buyer’s
different viewpoint of future cash flows. Also, we
depreciate property, plant and equipment on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Depreciable lives are based on our estimate of the assets’
economically useful lives. To the extent that an asset’s
actual life differs from our estimate, there could be an
impact on depreciation expense or a gain/loss on the
disposal of the asset in a later period. We expense major
maintenance costs as incurred. 

Other Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronounce-
ments See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, to our consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Our management uses a non-GAAP measure, adjusted
operating profit, to compare and evaluate the financial
performance of our segments. See Note 13, Business
Segments, to the consolidated financial statements.
We define adjusted operating profit as the sum of our
earnings before income taxes and financing costs.
Adjusted operating profit provides a core operational
earnings measurement that compares segments with-
out the need to adjust for federal, but more specifically,
state taxes which have considerable variation between
domestic jurisdictions. Tax regulations in international
operations add additional complexity. Also, we exclude
interest cost and discounts on the sales of accounts
receivable in our calculation of adjusted operating
profit. The results are, therefore, without consideration
of financing alternatives of capital employed. 

In the following table we are providing a reconciliation of the non-GAAP measure, adjusted operating profit
(loss) to net earnings (loss):

Marketing and Corporate and
(in millions) Manufacturing Recycling Distribution Eliminations Total

Year ended August 31, 2003:

Net earnings (loss) $ 13.6 $ 10.0 $ 15.5 $ (20.2) $ 18.9

Income taxes 6.5 5.1 4.8 (4.9) 11.5

Interest expense .1 — 1.3 13.9 15.3

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable .2 .1 .2 .1 .6

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 20.4 $ 15.2 $ 21.8 $ (11.1) $ 46.3

Year ended August 31, 2002:

Net earnings (loss) $ 45.0 $ 3.7 $ 8.1 $ (16.3) $ 40.5

Income taxes 25.7 1.2 3.8 (8.1) 22.6

Interest expense .3 — 2.0 16.4 18.7

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable .4 .2 .3 (.1) .8

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 71.4 $ 5.1 $ 14.2 $ (8.1) $ 82.6

Year ended August 31, 2001:

Net earnings (loss) $ 34.8 $ (1.5) $ 3.6 $ (13.1) $ 23.8

Income taxes 21.1 (.9) 2.1 (7.7) 14.6

Interest expense .4 — 1.8 25.4 27.6

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable .4 .1 .3 .2 1.0

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 56.7 $ (2.3) $ 7.8 $ 4.8 $ 67.0
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Year ended August 31,

(in millions except share data) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $2,876 $2,480 $2,470

Net earnings 18.9 40.5 23.8

International sales 1,186 771 755

As % of total 41% 31% 31%

LIFO effect on net earnings 

expense (income) 6.1 1.0 (1.1)

Per diluted share 0.21 0.04 (0.04)

LIFO reserve 17.4 8.1 6.5

% of inventory on LIFO 64% 72% 70%

The following events had a significant financial impact
during our fiscal year ended August 31, 2003 as com-
pared to our 2002 fiscal year:

11.. We recorded a $6.1 million (after-tax) LIFO expense
($0.21 per diluted share) compared to $1.0 million
LIFO expense ($0.04 per diluted share) in 2002.

22.. Our steel and copper tube minimills’ earnings
decreased due primarily to higher scrap, utility and
other input costs which were only partially offset by
increased selling prices and higher shipments.

33.. Margins were lower at the steel group’s fabrication
operations due to lower selling prices in spite of higher
shipments.

44.. In 2002, we recorded a $3.4 million (after-tax) gain
from the sale of the assets of SMI-Owen Steel Company.

55.. Adjusted operating profits in our recycling segment
in 2003 almost tripled from 2002 due mostly to the
rise in prices in steel (ferrous) scrap markets.

66.. Marketing and distribution’s adjusted operating
profit in 2003 was significantly higher than in 2002, with
most of the improvement in international markets.

Market conditions were difficult during the year ended
August 31, 2003, but our strategy of diversification,
both in our vertical integration as well as in our prod-
uct lines, enabled us to remain profitable. Throughout
much of 2003, our key markets, especially in the man-
ufacturing segment, were very competitive, although
conditions improved during the fourth quarter. Public
construction and institutional building remained fairly
strong. However, construction for factories, offices and
other commercial buildings in the United States was
significantly lower for the second consecutive year.
These conditions, along with higher input costs,
resulted in substantially lower operating profits in
2003 at our mills and fabrication operations as com-
pared to 2002. Also, many of our international
markets, except for China and Australia, remained

weak. During the second half of fiscal 2003, demand
for our products increased, and we realized some bene-
fit from the weaker U.S. dollar. Our net earnings
increased significantly in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2003, with net earnings for the three months ended
August 31, 2003 totaling $10.7 million as compared
to $9.0 million in 2002.

Segments

Unless otherwise indicated, all dollars below are before
income taxes. Financial results for our reportable seg-
ments are consistent with the basis and manner in
which we internally disaggregate financial information
for making operating decisions. We have three
reportable segments: manufacturing, recycling, and
marketing and distribution.

The following table shows net sales and adjusted
operating profit (loss) by business segment:

Year ended August 31,

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales:

Manufacturing $1,340 $1,366 $1,350

Recycling 441 378 394

Marketing and distribution 1,150 777 771

Adjusted operating profit (loss):

Manufacturing 20.4 71.4 56.7

Recycling 15.2 5.1 (2.3)

Marketing and distribution 21.8 14.2 7.8

2003 Compared to 2002

Manufacturing We include our steel group and our
copper tube division in our manufacturing segment.
Adjusted operating profit is equal to earnings before
income taxes for our four steel minimills, our copper
tube mill and the steel group’s fabrication operations.
Our manufacturing adjusted operating profit for the
year ended August 31, 2003 decreased $51.0 million as
compared to 2002. The sale of SMI-Owen and a litiga-
tion settlement at the mills in 2002 accounted for
$10.6 million of the decrease. Excluding these items,
adjusted operating profit decreased 66% in 2003 as
compared to 2002. Net sales for the year ended August
31, 2003 decreased $26.4 million (2%) as compared to
2002. Steel mill selling prices were at very low levels
for much of 2003. However, scrap purchase prices were
driven sharply higher by offshore demand and the
weakening value of the U.S. dollar. Our steel minimills
implemented higher selling prices that became par-
tially effective during the second half of 2003.
However, these price increases did not fully offset
higher scrap and utility costs. Gross margins were sig-
nificantly lower as a result of these conditions. Our
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copper tube mill’s gross margins were also lower due to
increased copper scrap purchase prices and lower selling
prices for its products. Our steel group’s fabrication
operations were less profitable in 2003 as compared to
2002 primarily due to lower selling prices which more
than offset the impact of higher shipments.

The table below reflects steel and scrap prices per ton:
August 31,

(dollars per ton) 2003 2002

Average mill selling price-total sales $278 $269

Average mill selling price-

finished goods only 287 275

Average fabrication selling price 536 608

Average ferrous scrap purchase price 97 80

Minimills Adjusted operating profit for our four steel
minimills decreased $18.2 million (52%) for the year
ended August 31, 2003 as compared to 2002. The
effect of valuing inventories under the LIFO method
accounted for $3.5 million (19%) of the decrease in
adjusted operating profit for the year ended August 31,
2003 as compared to 2002. Also, during the year
ended August 31, 2002, our steel minimills received
$2.5 million from a nonrecurring graphite electrode
litigation settlement. Even excluding these items,
adjusted operating profit in 2003 decreased as com-
pared to 2002 because higher shipments and average
selling prices were not enough to offset higher input
costs, including scrap and utilities. Our adjusted oper-
ating profit at SMI Texas decreased 25% to $19.3
million for the year ended August 31, 2003 as com-
pared to an adjusted operating profit of $25.8 million
in 2002. SMI South Carolina lost $7.1 million for the
year ended August 31, 2003 as compared to a $2.8
million adjusted operating profit in 2002. Higher
scrap costs, higher energy costs and a weak demand for
our products were the most significant reasons for SMI
South Carolina’s loss in 2003 although these factors
were partially offset by price increases in the fourth
quarter. SMI Arkansas reported a $160 thousand
adjusted operating profit in 2003 as compared to a
$3.5 million adjusted operating profit in 2002. Most
of the decrease in adjusted operating profit at SMI
Arkansas was attributable to LIFO expense caused by
higher year end inventories of rerolling rail. However,
adjusted operating profit at our SMI Alabama mill for
the year ended August 31, 2003 increased 63% to
$4.2 million as compared to $2.5 million in 2002.
Cost reduction efforts, improved operating efficiencies,
and better market conditions were the key factors in
SMI Alabama’s improved profitability. Our mills
shipped 2,284,000 tons in 2003, an increase of 5% as
compared to 2,171,000 tons shipped in 2002, due

largely to higher billet sales. Our mills rolled
1,972,000 tons, a 3% decrease as compared to 2002.
Our minimills melted 2,081,000 tons during the year
ended August 31, 2003, which was a decrease of 1% as
compared to 2002. Our average total mill selling price
at $278 per ton increased $9 (3%) as compared to
2002. Our mill selling price for finished goods
increased $12 per ton (4%) in 2003 as compared to
2002. Our average scrap purchase costs in 2003
increased $17 per ton (21%) as compared to 2002.
Utility expenses increased by $9.4 million for the year
ended August 31, 2003 as compared to 2002. The
increase in utility costs was mostly due to higher natural
gas costs, although electricity expenses also increased.

Fabrication and Other Businesses The steel group’s
fabrication and other businesses reported a combined
adjusted operating profit of $6.0 million for the year
ended August 31, 2003 as compared to a profit of
$33.6 million in 2002. We recorded a $5.2 million
gain from the sale of SMI-Owen Steel Company in
March 2002. Also, prior to its sale, SMI-Owen had an
adjusted operating profit of $2.9 million for the year
ended August 31, 2002. Excluding these items, fabri-
cation adjusted operating profits decreased by $19.5
million (76%) for the year ended August 31, 2003 as
compared to 2002. Our fabrication plants shipped
1,028,000 tons in 2003, 4% more than the 984,000
tons shipped during 2002. Our fabricated rebar ship-
ments increased 104,000 tons (19%) as compared to
2002. Lower structural, joist and post plant shipments
partially offset this increase. The average fabrication
selling price for the year ended August 31, 2003
decreased $72 per ton (12%) as compared to 2002.
Our rebar fabrication, construction-related products,
post and heat treating plants were profitable during
the year ended August 31, 2003. Our joist and struc-
tural steel fabrication operations recorded losses during
2003 due to lower selling prices and shipments. Dur-
ing the year ended August 31, 2003, the joist plants
reduced certain inventory stock values by $1.8 million
to their estimated current market value. Also, during
the year ended August 31, 2003, we wrote-down $711
thousand of inventory at two of our other fabrication
facilities, we recognized a $998 thousand gain on the
trade-in of rental forms in construction-related prod-
ucts, and we reduced our deferred insurance proceeds
accrual by $937 thousand (see Note 9, Commitments
and Contingencies to the consolidated financial state-
ments). During 2003, we acquired substantially all of
the operating assets of the Denver, Colorado location of
Symons Corporation, E.L. Wills in Fresno, California
and Dunn Del Re Steel in Chandler, Arizona. The
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Symons location is a concrete formwork supplier, and
E.L. Wills and Dunn Del Re Steel are rebar fabrication
operations. The purchase prices for these businesses
totaled $14.0 million. No single one of these acquisi-
tions was significant to our operations.

Copper Tube Our copper tube division reported an
adjusted operating profit of $620 thousand for the year
ended August 31, 2003 as compared to an adjusted
operating profit of $5.1 million in 2002. Net sales
were 2% lower in  2003 as compared to 2002. Our
copper tube shipments increased 4% to 61.9 million
pounds during 2003 as compared to 2002. However,
our average net selling price for plumbing and refrig-
eration tube decreased by 7 cents per pound (6%) to
$1.17 per pound as compared to $1.24 per pound in
2002. We increased our production to 60.7 million
pounds for the year ended August 31, 2003, which was
8% more than the 56.2 million pounds that we pro-
duced in 2002. Our average copper scrap price
increased 4 cents per pound (6%) during the year
ended August 31, 2003 as compared to 2002. The dif-
ference between the sales price ($1.17 and $1.24 in
2003 and 2002, respectively) and copper scrap pur-
chase cost ($0.72 and $0.68 in 2003 and 2002,
respectively) are commonly referred to as “the metal
spread.” The metal spread declined 21% in 2003 as
compared to 2002. Although single family residential
construction held up relatively well, other market sec-
tors were weaker which put pressure on selling prices.

Recycling Our recycling segment reported an adjusted
operating profit of $15.2 million for the year ended
August 31, 2003 as compared to an adjusted operating
profit of $5.1 million in 2002. All four of the geo-
graphic regions where the segment operates were
substantially more profitable. Net sales for the year
ended August 31, 2003 were $441.4 million, an
increase of 17% as compared to our net sales of $378.1
million in 2002. Our gross margins were 24% higher
in 2003 as compared to 2002, partially due to controls
over costs. The segment processed and shipped
1,639,000 tons of ferrous scrap during the year ended
August 31, 2003, an increase of 10% as compared to
2002. Ferrous sales prices were on average $100 per
ton, 23% higher than in 2002. Greater demand from
overseas markets contributed to this increase, as well as
the weaker U.S. dollar. 

Nonferrous markets improved moderately during
the year ended August 31, 2003. Our average nonfer-
rous scrap sales price of $1,021 per ton was 8% higher
than in 2002, although shipments were 3% lower at
231,000 tons. The total volume of scrap processed,

including the steel group’s processing plants, was
2,811,000 tons, an increase of 9% from the 2,568,000
tons processed in 2002.

Marketing and Distribution Net sales for the year
ended August 31, 2003 for our marketing and distri-
bution segment increased $372.7 million (48%) to
$1.15 billion, as compared to 2002 net sales of $777.0
million. Most of the increase related to sales outside of
the United States. Adjusted operating profit for the
year ended August 31, 2003 was $21.8 million, an
increase of 53% as compared to 2002, due mostly to
better results from our international operations. Inter-
national steel prices for flat-rolled products rose and
then weakened, because of decreased demand from
China, during the first three quarters of 2003. How-
ever, the prices for flat-rolled steel products rose again
during the fourth quarter. Prices for long products
slowly increased during 2003. Our steel shipments
increased, except for imports into the U.S. Our business
in the U.S. was reduced because of the weak economy
and the weaker U.S. dollar. Due to these factors, vol-
umes, prices and margins for nonferrous semi-finished
products were lower in 2003 as compared to 2002.
However, sales and margins for ores, minerals, ferroalloys
and special metals were generally higher. Also, freight
costs increased in 2003 as compared to 2002. Our mar-
keting and distribution and service center operations
in Australia were more profitable in 2003 as compared
to 2002. Our joint venture Europickling facility in
Belgium became profitable during 2003. Also, the
joint venture arrangements with our 11% investee,
Trinecke Zelezarny, a Czech mill, contributed to our
sales in Central Europe. Sales into Asia, including
China, were strong, especially during the first and sec-
ond quarters of our fiscal 2003. In July 2003, our
international subsidiary entered into a definitive agree-
ment to purchase a controlling interest in Huta
Zawiercie, a Polish steel minimill. This acquisition is
expected to close by December 15, 2003.

Other Our employees’ retirement plan expenses were
16% lower for the year ended August 31, 2003 as com-
pared to 2002. Discretionary items such as
contributions were lower for the year ended August 31,
2003 as compared to 2002. We committed less to these
items because 2003 was less profitable. Interest expense
for the year ended August 31, 2003 was lower as com-
pared to 2002 due primarily to lower overall interest
rates on short-term borrowings and two interest rate
swaps on parts of our long-term debt which resulted in
lower effective interest rates. 
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During 2002, we favorably resolved all issues for our
federal income tax returns through 1999. Due to the
lack of any material adjustments, we reevaluated the tax
accruals and, consequently, reduced the net tax expense
by $1.0 million during 2002.

On August 8, 2003, we increased our commercial paper
program to permit maximum borrowings of up to $275
million, up from the prior year $174.5 million level.
Commercial paper capacity is reduced by any outstand-
ing standby letters of credit under the 2003 program
which totalled $20.6 million at August 31, 2003. 

Near-Term Outlook

We expect our fiscal year ending August 31, 2004 to
be significantly more profitable than 2003, partially
because of the internal cost reductions and productiv-
ity improvements that we have made. We also are
expecting better economic conditions in 2004, mostly
in global manufacturing. We believe that our first
quarter of 2004 will have comparable profits to the
quarter ended August 31, 2003. We anticipate net
earnings (excluding the effect of revaluing inventories
on the LIFO method) to be approximately $9 million
to $10 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2004. We
have noted signs of increasing demand in the U.S.
manufacturing sector, and some improvement in con-
struction. However, office, lodging and industrial
construction will be slower to recover. Also, orders for
capital goods are higher. Asian markets are relatively
strong and European markets are partially recovering.
We anticipate that our overall results will be better in
the second half of 2004 as compared to the first half. 

We anticipate our profits will be higher in 2004 in
our manufacturing segment as compared to 2003
because of higher metal spreads and increased produc-
tion, shipments and prices. We have implemented
several steel minimill price increases on most of our
products. The cumulative price increases are $70 per
ton for merchant bar and $55 per ton for reinforcing
bar. We are expecting these price increases to become
fully effective during the first half of fiscal 2004. As a
result, gross margins at our steel minimills should
increase. We expect the gross margins in our fabrica-
tion and other related businesses to continue at current
levels during the first few months in fiscal 2004. How-
ever, these margins should improve later in that year. 

We anticipate that our recycling segment will con-
tinue to report significant profits, due to strong

demand for steel scrap and nonferrous metal scrap and
the relatively weak U.S. dollar. 

Our marketing and distribution segment should
remain profitable during our fiscal 2004. We expect
that our U.S. operations will be more profitable, but
that our international subsidiary will have lower prof-
its in 2004 as compared to 2003.  Overall, prices and
volumes should remain constant. We are expecting
that our purchase of the controlling interest in Huta
Zawiercie will be completed by December 15, 2003. 

We anticipate that our capital spending for 2004
will be $61 million, excluding the $50 million acqui-
sition cost for 71.1% of the shares of Huta Zawiercie.
Most of these expenditures will be in our manufactur-
ing segment including a major improvement project at
our SMI-Texas melt shop.

Long-Term Outlook

We believe we are well-positioned to exploit long term
opportunities. Long term, we expect stronger demand
for our products due to the increased possibility of a
recovery in demand throughout the major global
economies as well as continued growth in developing
countries. Emerging countries often have a higher
growth rate for steel and nonferrous metals consump-
tion. We believe that the demand will increase in Asia,
particularly in China, as well as in Central and Eastern
Europe. 

Further consolidation is a virtual certainty in the
industries in which we participate, and we plan to con-
tinue to participate in a prudent way. The reasons for
further consolidation include an inadequate return on
capital for most companies, numerous bankruptcies, a
high degree of fragmentation, the need to eliminate
non-competitive capacity and more effective marketing. 

This outlook and the liquidity and capital resources
section contain forward-looking statements regarding
the outlook for our financial results including net earn-
ings, product pricing and demand, production rates,
input costs, information systems capabilities, capital
expenditures, cost reduction and productivity efforts,
currency effects, and general global market conditions.
These forward-looking statements can generally be
identified by phrases such as we “expect,” “anticipate,”
“believe,” “ought,” “should,” “could,” “likely,” “appear,”
“project,” “forecast” or other similar words or phrases
of similar impact. There is inherent risk and uncer-
tainty in any forward-looking statements. Variances
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will occur and some could be materially different from
our current opinion. Developments that could impact
our expectations include the following:
• interest rate changes
• construction activity
• litigation claims and settlements
• difficulties or delays in the execution of construction

contracts resulting in cost overruns or contract disputes
• metals pricing over which we exert little influence
• increased capacity and product availability from

competing steel minimills and other steel suppliers
including import quantities and pricing

• court decisions
• industry consolidation or changes in production

capacity or utilization
• global factors including credit availability
• currency fluctuations
• scrap, energy, insurance and supply prices
• decisions by governments impacting the level of

steel imports and the pace of overall economic activity

2002 Compared to 2001

Segments

Manufacturing We include our steel group and our cop-
per tube division in our manufacturing segment.

Adjusted operating profit is equal to earnings before
income taxes for our four steel minimills, our copper
tube mill and the steel group’s fabrication operations.
Our manufacturing adjusted operating profit in 2002
increased $14.7 million (26%) as compared to 2001 on
marginally more ($12 million) net sales. We achieved
this increase in adjusted operating profit for two pri-
mary reasons in 2002: (i) the nonrecurrence of the
prior year litigation accrual in the amount of $8.3 mil-
lion, and (ii) the current year gain on the sale of the
steel group’s heavy structural fabrication operation,
SMI-Owen, in the amount of $5.2 million. Excluding
those items, our manufacturing segment’s adjusted
operating profit was slightly higher than last year. 

Increased production and shipments at our steel
group’s minimills more than offset lower selling prices,
increased scrap purchase costs and lower copper tube
earnings. Also, we spent less in 2002 on utilities, and
we recorded lower depreciation and amortization
expense. However, fiscal 2002 adjusted operating prof-
its decreased from fiscal 2001 in the steel group’s
downstream steel fabrication and related businesses
due to lower profits in rebar fabrication and structural
steel fabrication, excluding SMI-Owen. 

The table below reflects steel and scrap prices per ton:
August 31,

(dollars per ton) 2002 2001

Average mill selling price-total sales $269 $284

Average mill selling price-

finished goods only 275 290

Average fabrication selling price 608 646

Average ferrous scrap purchase price 80 74

Minimills During 2002, adjusted operating profit for
our four steel minimills rose 27% compared with
2001, despite lower selling prices. SMI South Carolina
had a $2.8 million adjusted operating profit in 2002
compared to a $1.6 million loss in 2001. SMI Alabama
turned around as well with a $2.5 million adjusted
operating profit in 2002 compared to a $2.2 million
loss in 2001. Adjusted operating profits at SMI
Arkansas were up 4% in the current year period. These
improvements more than offset a 7% decline in
adjusted operating profits at SMI Texas as compared to
2001. A major reason for the minimills’ improved
profitability was a 14% increase in shipments because
of continued public projects infrastructure construc-
tion. Shipments were 2,171,000 tons in 2002
compared to 1,903,000 in 2001. Mill production also
increased over last year. Tons rolled were up 19% to
2,026,000 in 2002. Tons melted were up 17% to
2,100,000 in 2002. Even though demand was strong,
the average total mill selling price at $269 per ton was
$15 (5%) below last year. Also, in 2002, we sold more
semi-finished billets, a product with a lower selling
price than our average. Average scrap purchase costs
were $6 per ton (8%) higher than in 2001, resulting in
smaller margins. Utility expenses declined by $2.4
million as compared to 2001. Decreases in natural gas
costs more than offset higher electricity costs. Also,
depreciation and amortization expenses decreased by
$5.2 million in 2002, primarily because SMI-South
Carolina fully depreciated its mill rolls and guides as
well as certain melt shop equipment. The mills also
received $2.5 million from a nonrecurring graphite
electrode litigation settlement in 2002.

The U.S. government’s new tariffs cover most of the
steel minimills’ products and range from 15-30% the
first year, declining over the next two years. An import
licensing and monitoring system and an anti-surge
mechanism will further strengthen these remedies.
Also, the U.S. administration plans to continue discus-
sions with other steel producing nations to remove
excess global capacity and eliminate subsidies.

Fabrication and Other Businesses Adjusted operating
profit in the steel group’s fabrication and other busi-
nesses increased by $12.1 million (57%) in 2002 as
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compared to 2001. Excluding the 2002 gain on the sale
of SMI-Owen ($5.2 million) and the 2001 litigation
accrual ($8.3 million), adjusted operating profits in
2002 decreased by $1.3 million (4%) as compared to 2001.

Near the end of fiscal 2002, we discovered two sig-
nificant, but unrelated events, requiring retroactive
writedowns at two rebar fabrication operations. The
total amount of the adjustments required to correct the
August 31, 2002 balance sheets of these two facilities
was $4.6 million. These adjustments affected fiscal
years from 1999 to 2002. In August 2002, we uncov-
ered a theft and an accounting fraud which occurred
over four years at a rebar fabrication plant in South
Carolina. The total adjustment required to revert the
accounting records to their proper balances was $2.7
million. In September 2002, we discovered accounting
errors related to losses on rebar fabrication and place-
ment jobs at one facility in California, some of which
date back to its acquisition in fiscal 2000. The result-
ing charge was $1.9 million. The South Carolina
incident resulted in a $900 thousand expense in fiscal
2002. The remaining $3.7 million for both instances
was attributed $885 thousand to fiscal 2001, $2.6 mil-
lion to fiscal 2000, and $227 thousand to 1999,
resulting in prior period adjustments to these previ-
ously reported financial statements. We took
immediate action to strengthen compliance with our
internal control policies in the areas of segregation of
duties, personnel and management review and over-
sight. Controllers at both locations were replaced as
well as the general manager of the rebar fabrication
plant in South Carolina. The steel group has increased
the level of detail, the frequency of submission and the
amount of review of its operating locations’ reporting.
The Company has renewed emphasis on periodic and
timely internal balance sheet audits at all operating
locations and completed audits of all its operating loca-
tions in fiscal 2003. No major areas of noncompliance
were noted. Senior management and area managers of
all the Company’s locations attended internal meetings
led by the CEO and CFO regarding management’s
responsibility for internal control, dealing with non-
compliance issues and the Company’s commitment to
only the highest of ethical standards of conduct.

Fabrication plant shipments totaled 984,000 tons,
down fractionally from 986,000 tons shipped in 2001.
The average fabrication selling price in 2002 decreased
$38 per ton (6%) as compared to 2001. Rebar fabrica-
tion markets were softer in 2002 as a result of intense
competition, and several plants reported losses. During
2002, we acquired the real estate, equipment, inven-
tory and work in process of Varmicon, Inc. in
Harlingen, Texas. We now operate this rebar fabrica-

tion facility under the name of SMI-Valley Steel. The
steel joist operations, which includes cellular and
castellated beams, were break even in 2002, an
improvement over the loss in 2001. Both prices and
shipments decreased, but lower operating costs and
shop efficiencies helped significantly. Also, in 2001
these operations incurred $8.9 million in start-up
costs. Structural steel fabrication profits, excluding
SMI-Owen and the prior year litigation accrual, were
down in 2002 compared to 2001. However, our con-
crete-related products operations were more profitable
in 2002. We continued to expand this business
through the acquisition of Dowel Assembly Manufac-
turing Company, or DAMCO, in Jackson, Mississippi.
DAMCO manufactures dowel baskets and has an
epoxy coating business. In 2002, the steel group
started Spray Forming International, a stainless steel
cladding operation located in South Carolina.

Copper Tube Our copper tube division’s adjusted oper-
ating profit decreased 59% with 7% less net sales as
compared to 2001. Copper tube shipments increased
3% from 2001 to a record 59.3 million pounds, and
production increased 5% from 2001 to a record 56.2
million pounds. However, average sales prices dropped
10% in 2002 to $1.24 per pound as compared to the
average sales price in 2001 of $1.38. The biggest factor
was lower apartment and hotel/motel construction.
Consequently, demand for plumbing and refrigeration
tube was not as strong. The 2002 product mix included
increased quantities of HVAC products and line sets. In
the marketplace, we continued to adapt to the consoli-
dation among our buyers. The difference between sales
price and copper scrap purchase cost (commonly
referred to as “the metal spread”), declined 8% in 2002
compared to 2001. Lower raw material purchase costs
did not fully compensate for the decline in selling prices.

Recycling Our recycling segment reported an adjusted
operating profit of $5.1 million in 2002 compared with
an adjusted operating loss of $2.3 million in 2001. Net
sales in 2002 were 4% lower at $378 million as com-
pared to 2001. However, gross margins were 11%
above last year, primarily because we shipped 8% more
total tons. Demand for ferrous scrap improved both in
the U.S. and internationally. The segment processed
and shipped 1,494,000 tons of ferrous scrap in 2002,
10% more than in 2001. Ferrous sales prices were on
average $81 per ton, an increase of $6 from 2001. Non-
ferrous shipments were flat at 238,000 tons. The
average 2002 nonferrous scrap sales price of $947 per
ton was 9% lower than in 2001. Increased productivity,
higher asset turnover and reduced costs contributed to
the improved 2002 results. The total volume of scrap
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processed, including the steel group’s processing plants,
was 2,568,000 tons, an increase of 11% from the
2,308,000 tons processed in 2001. 

In 2002, we acquired most of the transportation
assets of Sampson Steel Corporation in Beaumont,
Texas. These assets were combined with our existing
scrap processing facility in Beaumont. Also, we closed
our Midland, Texas facility, resulting in a writedown of
$455,000 on certain equipment.

Marketing and Distribution Net sales in 2002 for our
marketing and distribution segment increased 1% to
$777 million as compared to 2001. Adjusted operating
profit in 2002 increased 82% to $14.2 million as com-
pared to 2001, mostly due to better results from our
Australian operations. International steel prices and
volumes for steel and nonferrous semifinished products
improved during the second half of 2002, primarily in
the distribution and processing businesses. However,
depressed economies, oversupply in most markets and
intense competition from domestic suppliers in the
respective markets caused compressed margins for
numerous steel products, nonferrous metal products
and industrial raw materials and products. The U.S.
dollar weakened against major currencies, a beneficial
development. 

In September 2001, we completed our acquisition of
Coil Steels Group, an Australian service center in
which we already owned a 22% share. This acquisition
provided $2.2 million of additional profits and $69.0
million in net sales during 2002. Sales and profits for
the Company’s pre-existing business in Australia also
improved significantly. However, this increase in net
sales was more than offset by decreased sales in our U.S.
operations due to fewer imports into the United States. 

Operating profits for the U.S. divisions improved
significantly due to Cometals which returned to more
historical levels, and Dallas Trading which benefited
from the U.S. tariff legislation. Lower margins at 
Commonwealth on semi-finished products almost off-
set these improvements. Our European operations’ net
sales decreased slightly in 2002 as compared to 2001,
but profits improved significantly. The segment’s
recent strategy of growing its downstream marketing
and distribution business offset the continuing very
difficult trading conditions.

Other Selling, general and administrative, as well as
employees’ retirement plans expenses, were higher in
2002 as compare to 2001, mostly due to our acquisition
of CSG in 2001 and discretionary items such as bonuses
and profit sharing. This increase was consistent with
the improvement in our operating profitability. Interest
expense decreased by $8.9 million (32%) from 2001

largely due to lower interest rates and much lower aver-
age short-term borrowings. Also, during 2002 we
entered into two interest rate swaps which resulted in
interest expense savings. During 2002, we favorably
resolved all issues for our federal income tax returns
through 1999. Due to the lack of any material adjust-
ments, we reevaluated the tax accruals and,
consequently, reduced the net tax expense by $1.0 mil-
lion during 2002.

2003 Liquidity and Capital Resources

We discuss liquidity and capital resources on a consol-
idated basis. Our discussion includes the sources and
uses of our three operating segments and centralized
corporate functions. We have a centralized treasury
function and use inter-company loans to efficiently
manage the short-term cash needs of our operating
divisions. We invest any excess funds centrally. 

We rely upon cash flows from operating activities,
and to the extent necessary, external short-term financ-
ing sources. Our short-term financing sources include
commercial paper, sales of certain accounts receivable,
short-term trade financing arrangements and borrow-
ing under our bank credit facilities. From time to
time, we have issued long-term public and private
debt placements. Our investment grade credit ratings
and general business conditions affect our access to
external financing on a cost-effective basis. Depending
on the price of our common stock, we may realize sig-
nificant cash flows from the exercise of stock options. 

Moody’s Investors Service (P-2), Standard & Poor’s
Corporation (A-2) and Fitch (F-2) rate our commercial
paper program in the second highest category. To sup-
port our commercial paper program, on August 8,
2003, we entered into a $275 million unsecured, con-
tractually committed revolving credit agreement with
a group of sixteen banks. Our $275 million facility
expires in August 2006. This agreement provides for
borrowing in U.S. dollars with the interest rate
indexed to LIBOR. The spread over LIBOR may vary
between 33 basis points and 105 basis points based
upon the rating of our non-credit enhanced senior
unsecured long-term debt by Moody’s Investors Ser-
vice and Standard & Poor’s Corporation. Actual
borrowings are subject to a facility fee which may vary
between 17 and 45 basis points based on the same debt
ratings. In addition, if we borrow more than 33% of
the authorized borrowings under the credit agreement,
we will incur an additional 12.5 basis point fee on
actual borrowings. No compensating balances are
required. The credit agreement serves as a backup to
our commercial paper program. We plan to continue
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our commercial paper program and the revolving
credit agreements in comparable amounts to support
the commercial paper program. 

For added flexibility, we may secure financing
through securitized sales of certain accounts receivable
in an amount not to exceed $130 million and direct
sales of accounts receivable. We may continually sell
accounts receivable on an ongoing basis to replace
those receivables that have been collected from our
customers. Our long-term public debt was $254 mil-
lion at August 31, 2003 and is investment grade rated
by Standard & Poor’s Corporation (BBB), Fitch (BBB)
and by Moody’s Investors Service (Baa2). We have
access to the public markets for potential refinancing
or the issuance of additional long-term debt. See Note
15, Subsequent Events, to our consolidated financial
statements regarding our issuance of bonds and repay-
ment of certain debt after year end. Also, we have
numerous informal, uncommitted credit facilities
available from domestic and international banks. These
credit facilities are priced at current market rates.

Credit ratings affect our ability to obtain short- and
long-term financing and the cost of such financing. If
the rating agencies were to reduce our credit ratings,
we would pay higher financing costs and probably
would have less availability of the informal, uncom-
mitted facilities. On November 5, 2003, Moody’s
Investors Service downgraded our senior unsecured
debt rating from Baa1 to Baa2, but changed its out-
look from negative to stable, equal to that of Standard
& Poor’s Corporation. In determining our credit rat-
ings, the rating agencies consider a number of both
quantitative and qualitative factors. These factors
include earnings, fixed charges such as interest, cash
flows, total debt outstanding, off balance sheet obliga-
tions and other commitments, total capitalization and
various ratios calculated from these factors. The rating
agencies also consider predictability of cash flows,
business strategy, industry conditions and contingen-
cies. We are committed to maintaining our investment
grade ratings. 

Certain of our financing agreements include various
covenants. The most restrictive of these covenants
requires us to maintain an interest coverage ratio of
greater than three times and a debt to capitalization
ratio of 55%, as defined in the financing agreement. A
few of the agreements provide that if we default on the
terms of another financing agreement, it is considered
a default under these agreements. We have complied
with the requirements, including the covenants of our
financing agreements, as of and for the year ended
August 31, 2003. 

Our revolving credit agreements and accounts
receivable securitization agreement include ratings
triggers. The trigger in the revolving credit agree-
ments is solely a means to reset pricing for facility fees
and, if a borrowing occurs, on loans. Within the
accounts receivable securitization agreement, the rat-
ings trigger is contained in a “termination event,” but
the trigger is set at catastrophic levels. The trigger
requires a combination of ratings actions on behalf of
two independent rating agencies and is set at levels six
ratings categories below our current rating. 

Our manufacturing and recycling businesses are cap-
ital intensive. Our capital requirements include
construction, purchases of equipment and maintenance
capital at existing facilities. We plan to invest in new
operations. We also plan to invest in working capital
to support the growth of our businesses and pay divi-
dends to our stockholders. 

We continue to assess alternative means of raising
capital, including potential dispositions of under-per-
forming or non-strategic assets. Any potential future
major acquisitions could require additional financing
from external sources including the issuance of com-
mon or preferred stock. 

Cash Flows Our cash flows from operating activities
primarily result from sales of steel and related prod-
ucts, and to a lesser extent, sales of nonferrous metal
products. We also sell and rent construction-related
products and accessories. We have a diverse and gener-
ally stable customer base. We use futures or forward
contracts as needed to mitigate the risks from fluctua-
tions in foreign currency exchange rates and metals
commodity prices. 

The volume and pricing of orders from our U.S. cus-
tomers in the manufacturing and construction sectors
affect our cash flows from operating activities. Our
international marketing and distribution operations
also significantly affect our cash flows from operating
activities. The weather can influence the volume of
products we ship in any given period. Also, the general
economy, the strength of the U.S. dollar, governmental
action, and various other factors beyond our control
influence our volume and prices. Periodic fluctuations
in our prices and volumes can result in variations in
cash flows from operating activities. Despite these
fluctuations, we have historically relied on operating
activities as a steady source of cash. 

Our net cash flows from operating activities were
$15.3 million for the year ended August 31, 2003,
which were $81.3 million lower as compared to the
$96.6 million of net cash flows from our operating
activities for the year ended August 31, 2002. Our net
earnings decreased $21.6 million in 2003 as compared
to 2002. Also, our accounts receivable and inventories
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increased by $112.6 million in 2003 as compared to an
increase of $85.9 million in 2002.  These items
increased in 2003 primarily in our marketing and dis-
tribution operations due to higher sales orders from
outside of the United States. Our accounts payable at
August 31, 2003 was higher than at August 31, 2002,
but the increase in accounts payable was not commen-
surate with the increase in inventories. During the year
ended August 31, 2003, we paid more bonuses and
other discretionary expenses, which had been accrued
at August 31, 2002, than we did during the year ended
August 31, 2002. As a result, our accrued expenses
decreased during the year ended August 31, 2003.
Also, we paid $9.6 million during the year ended
August 31, 2003 relating to an adverse trial judgment
that was upheld on appeal. This judgment had been
accrued at August 31, 2002. During 2002, we had
received $15.0 million from a favorable litigation set-
tlement and $5.2 million for the contract balance and
settlement of disputed change orders on an old large
structural steel fabrication contract at SMI-Owen.

We invested $49.8 million in property, plant and
equipment during the year ended August 31, 2003, an
increase of $2.6 million (5%) as compared to 2002.
The capital expenditures in 2003 were primarily in our
manufacturing segment. In addition, we acquired the
operating assets of two rebar fabrication operations and
one construction-related products business in 2003,
for a total of $13.4 million cash. In 2002, we acquired
the remaining shares of the Coil Steels Group (CSG)

for $6.8 million. Also, in 2002, we received $19.7 mil-
lion from the sale of the assets of SMI-Owen, our large
structural steel fabrication operation located in Columbia,
South Carolina. We assess our capital spending each
quarter and reevaluate our requirements based upon
current and expected results. 

At August 31, 2003, 27,994,690 common shares
were issued and outstanding, including 4,270,476
held in our treasury. We paid dividends of $9.0 million
during the year ended August 31, 2003, as compared
to $7.5 million in 2002. During the year ended
August 31, 2003, we purchased 951,410 shares of our
common stock at an average price of $15.36 per share.
These shares were held in our treasury. During 2003,
we received $6.2 million from the issuance of stock
from our treasury under our stock incentive and pur-
chase plans, as compared to $30.2 million received
from these transactions in 2002. 

During the year ended August 31, 2003, we used
our excess cash and cash equivalents, sold accounts
receivable and entered into short-term trade financing
arrangements to help meet our operating cash require-
ments, purchase property, plant and equipment and
acquire our common stock for the treasury. No
amounts were outstanding under our commercial
paper program at August 31, 2003 or 2002. We have
no significant amounts due on our long-term debt
until July 2005. 

We believe that we have sufficient liquidity for
fiscal 2004.

Contractual Obligations

The following table represents our contractual obligations as of August 31, 2003 (dollars in thousands):
Payments Due Within*

Total 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years

Contractual Obligations:

Long-term debt(1) $ 255,637 $ 640 $ 104,884 $ 50,041 $ 100,072

Operating leases(2) 40,670 9,318 14,068 8,386 8,898

Unconditional purchase obligations(3) 186,100 79,831 68,911 13,493 23,865

Total contractual cash obligations $ 482,407 $ 89,789 $ 187,863 $ 71,920 $ 132,835

*We have not discounted the cash obligations in this table. 
(1) Total amounts are included in the August 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet. See Note 4, Credit Arrangements, and Note 15, Subsequent Events, to the

consolidated financial statements.
(2) Includes minimum lease payment obligations for noncancelable equipment and real-estate leases in effect as of August 31, 2003. See Note 9, Commitments

and Contingencies, to the consolidated financial statements.
(3) About 68% of these purchase obligations are for inventory items to be sold in the ordinary course of business; most of the remainder are for freight and sup-

plies associated with normal revenue-producing activities.

Other Commercial Commitments

We maintain stand-by letters of credit to provide sup-
port for certain transactions that our customers or
suppliers request. At August 31, 2003, we had com-
mitted $20.6 million under these arrangements. All
commitments expire within one year.

At the request of a customer and its surety bond
issuer, we have agreed to indemnify the surety against
all costs the surety may incur should our customer fail
to perform its obligations under construction contracts
covered by payment and performance bonds issued by
the surety. We are the customer’s primary supplier of 
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steel, and steel is a substantial portion of our cus-
tomer’s cost to perform the contracts. We believe we
have adequate controls to monitor the customer’s per-
formance under the contracts including payment for
the steel we supply. As of August 31, 2003, the surety
had issued bonds in the total amount (without reduc-
tion for work performed to that date) of $11.9 million
which are subject to our guaranty obligation under the
indemnity agreement.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of conducting our business, we
become involved in litigation, administrative proceedings,
government investigations including environmental
matters, and contract disputes. We may incur settle-
ments, fines, penalties or judgments because of some of
these matters. While we are unable to estimate pre-
cisely the ultimate dollar amount of exposure or loss in
connection with these matters, we make accruals we
deem necessary. The amounts we accrue could vary
substantially from amounts we pay due to several fac-
tors including the following: evolving remediation
technology, changing regulations, possible third-party
contributions, the inherent shortcomings of the esti-
mation process, and the uncertainties involved in
litigation. Accordingly, we cannot always estimate a
meaningful range of possible exposure. We believe that
we have adequately provided in our financial state-
ments for the estimable potential impact of these
contingencies. We also believe that the outcomes will
not significantly affect the long-term results of opera-
tions or our financial position. However, they may have
a material impact on earnings for a particular period.

Construction Contract Disputes See Note 9, Commit-
ments and Contingencies, to the consolidated financial
statements.

Environmental and Other Matters 

General We are subject to federal, state and local pol-
lution control laws and regulations. We anticipate that
compliance with these laws and regulations will involve
continuing capital expenditures and operating costs.

Our original business and one of our core businesses
for over eight decades is metals recycling. In the pres-
ent era of conservation of natural resources and
ecological concerns, we are committed to sound eco-
logical and business conduct. Certain governmental
regulations regarding environmental concerns, how-
ever well intentioned, are contrary to the goal of
greater recycling. Such regulations expose us and the
industry to potentially significant risks.

We believe that recycled materials are commodities
that are diverted by recyclers, such as us, from the solid
waste streams because of their inherent value. Commodi-
ties are materials that are purchased and sold in public
and private markets and commodities exchanges every
day around the world. They are identified, purchased,
sorted, processed and sold in accordance with carefully
established industry specifications.

Environmental agencies at various federal and state
levels classify certain recycled materials as hazardous
substances and subject recyclers to material remedia-
tion costs, fines and penalties. Taken to extremes, such
actions could cripple the recycling industry and under-
mine any national goal of material conservation.
Enforcement, interpretation, and litigation involving
these regulations are not well developed.

Solid and Hazardous Waste We currently own or
lease, and in the past owned or leased, properties that
have been used in our operations. Although we used
operating and disposal practices that were standard in
the industry at the time, wastes may have been disposed
or released on or under the properties or on or under
locations where such wastes have been taken for dis-
posal. We are currently involved in the investigation
and remediation of several such properties. State and
federal laws applicable to wastes and contaminated
properties have gradually become stricter over time.
Under new laws, we could be required to remediate
properties impacted by previously disposed wastes. We
have been named as a potentially responsible party at a
number of contaminated sites.

We generate wastes, including hazardous wastes, that
are subject to the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (“RCRA”) and comparable state and/or
local statutes where we operate. These statutes, regula-
tions and laws may have limited disposal options for
certain wastes.

Superfund The U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, or EPA, or an equivalent state agency notified
us that we are considered a potentially responsible
party, or PRP, at fourteen sites, none owned by us. We
may be obligated under the Comprehensive Environ-
mental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of
1980, or CERCLA, or a similar state statute to conduct
remedial investigation, feasibility studies, remediation
and/or removal of alleged releases of hazardous sub-
stances or to reimburse the EPA for such activities. We
are involved in litigation or administrative proceed-
ings with regard to several of these sites in which we
are contesting, or at the appropriate time we may con-
test, our liability at the sites. In addition, we have
received information requests with regard to other
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sites which may be under consideration by the EPA as
potential CERCLA sites.

Clean Water Act The Clean Water Act (“CWA”)
imposes restrictions and strict controls regarding the
discharge of wastes into waters of the United States, a
term broadly defined. These controls have become
more stringent over time and it is probable that addi-
tional restrictions will be imposed in the future.
Permits must generally be obtained to discharge pollu-
tants into federal waters; comparable permits may be
required at the state level. The CWA and many state
agencies provide for civil, criminal and administrative
penalties for unauthorized discharges of pollutants. In
addition, the EPA has promulgated regulations that
may require us to obtain permits to discharge storm
water runoff. In the event of an unauthorized dis-
charge, we may be liable for penalties and costs.

Clean Air Act Our operations are subject to regula-
tions at the federal, state and local level for the control
of emissions from sources of air pollution. New and
modified sources of air pollutants are often required to
obtain permits prior to commencing construction,
modification and/or operations. Major sources of air
pollutants are subject to more stringent requirements,
including the potential need for additional permits
and to increased scrutiny in the context of enforcement.
The EPA has been implementing its stationary emis-
sion control program through expanded enforcement
of the New Source Review Program. Under this pro-
gram, new or modified sources are required to
construct what is referred to as the Best Available Con-
trol Technology. Additionally, the EPA is
implementing new, more stringent standards for ozone
and fine particulate matter. The EPA recently has
promulgated new national emission stands for haz-
ardous air pollutants for steel mills which will require
all major sources in this category to meet the standards
by reflecting application of maximum achievable con-
trol technology. Compliance with the new standards
could require additional expenditures.

In fiscal 2003, we incurred environmental expense
of $11.8 million. This expense included the cost of
environmental personnel at various divisions, permit
and license fees, accruals and payments for studies, tests,
assessments, remediation, consultant fees, baghouse
dust removal and various other expenses. Approxi-
mately $4.2 million of our capital expenditures for
2003 related to costs directly associated with environ-
mental compliance. At August 31, 2003, $2.9 million
was accrued for environmental liabilities of which $1.3
million is classified as other long-term liabilities.

Dividends

We have paid quarterly cash dividends in each of the
past 40 consecutive years. We paid dividends in 2003
at the rate of 8 cents per share each quarter.

Market Risk

Approach to Minimizing Market Risk See Note 5,
Financial Instruments, Market and Credit Risk, for dis-
closure regarding our approach to minimizing market
risk. Also, see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial state-
ments. The following types of derivative instruments
were outstanding at August 31, 2003, in accordance
with our risk management program.

Currency Exchange Forwards We enter into currency
exchange forward contracts as economic hedges of
international trade commitments denominated in
currencies other than the United States dollar, or, if the
transaction involves our Australian or European sub-
sidiaries, their local currency. No single foreign
currency poses a primary risk to us. Fluctuations that
cause temporary disruptions in one market segment
tend to open opportunities in other segments. 

Effective September 1, 2002, we changed most of
our European subsidiaries’ functional currency to the
Euro. We do not anticipate that this change will have a
significant impact on our financial results.

Commodity Prices We base pricing in some of our sales
and purchase contracts on forward metal commodity
exchange quotes which we determine at the beginning
of the contract. Due to the volatility of the metal com-
modity indexes, we enter into metal commodity
forward or futures contracts for copper, aluminum and
zinc. These forwards or futures mitigate the risk of
unanticipated declines in gross margins on these contrac-
tual commitments. Physical transaction quantities will
not match exactly with standard commodity lot sizes,
leading to small gains and losses from ineffectiveness.

Interest Rate Swaps See Note 4, Credit Arrangements,
regarding our strategy for managing the fluctuations in
interest rates on our long-term debt.

The following table provides certain information
regarding the foreign exchange and commodity finan-
cial instruments discussed above.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Contract Commitments as of August 31, 2003:

U.S. $
Amount Range of Equivalent

(in thousands) Currency Hedge Rates (in thousands)

16,780 Euro $1.123–1.003 $ 18,457

584,447 Japanese yen 0.0080–0.0075 4,872

10,547 British pound 1.6692–1.5630 16,755

114,192 Australian dollar 0.6757–0.5484 73,563

133 New Zealand dollar 0.5330 76

80,142 Polish zloty 0.2506–0.2485 20,000

133,723
Revaluation as of August 31, 2003, at quoted market 133,724

Unrealized loss $ (1)

• Substantially all foreign currency exchange contracts mature within one year.

• Hedge rates reflect foreign currency conversion to U.S. dollar.

As of August 31, 2002 (in thousands):
Revaluation at quoted market $ 98,619
Unrealized gain $ 253

Metal Commodity Contract Commitments as of August 31, 2003:

Range or Total Contract
Amount of Value at

Long/ # of Standard Total Hedge Rates Inception
Terminal Exchange Metal Short Lots Lot Size Weight Per MT (in thousands)

London Metal 

Exchange (LME) Copper Long 125 25 MT 3,125 MT $1,476.00-1,777.00 $ 206

Copper Short 25 25 MT 625 MT 1,778.00 44

Nickel Short 167 6 MT 1,002 MT 8,735.00-9,595.00 2,620

Aluminum Long 452 25 MT 11,300 MT 1,301.50-1,449.00 3,162

Aluminum Short 4,500 25 MT 112,500 MT 1,346.00-1,424.75 6,420

New York Mercantile Per 100/wt.
Exchange Copper Long 193 25,000 lbs. 4.8 MM lbs. 69.55-81.90 3,832
Commodities Division
(Comex) Copper Short 73 25,000 lbs. 1.8 MM lbs. 78.95-81.85 1,411

17,695

Revaluation as of August 31, 2003, at quoted market 17,537

Unrealized gain $ 158

• Seven lots mature after one year

• MT = Metric Tons

• MM = Millions

As of August 31, 2002 (in thousands):
Revaluation at quoted market $ 16,502
Unrealized loss $ 161
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Financial Ratios and Statistics

Year ended August 31,

2003 2002 2001

Liquidity
Current ratio 1.9 1.9 1.8

Acid test ratio 1.1 1.1 1.0

Turnover
Average day’s sales $ 7.9 $ 6.8 $ 6.7

million million million

Accounts receivable 

No. of days’ sales outstanding 50.4 51.8 50.1

Inventories

No. of days’ sales on hand 43.3 44.6 37.4

Leverage
Long-term debt as a 

percent of total capitalization* 31.6% 32.4% 35.2%

Total debt to total 

capitalization*

plus short-term debt 32.9% 32.5% 36.4%

Ratio of total debt to

tangible net worth 0.5 0.5 0.6

Ratio of total liabilities to 

total assets 0.6 0.6 0.6

Short-term borrowings as a

percent of total borrowings 5.5% 0.0% 1.4%

Coverage
Times interest earned pre-tax 3.0 4.4 2.4

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.57 3.77 2.19

Taxes
Effective tax rate 37.8% 35.8% 38.1%

Profitability
Earnings before taxes/net sales 1.1% 2.5% 1.6%

Net earnings/net sales 0.7% 1.6% 1.0%

Return on beginning 

stockholders’ equity 3.8% 9.4% 5.7%

* Total capitalization = long-term debt + deferred income taxes + total
stockholders’ equity

Dividend Data and Price Range of Common Stock

2003 Price Range of 
Fiscal Common Stock Cash

Quarter High Low Dividends

1st $19.92 $15.70 8¢

2nd 17.21 13.75 8¢

3rd 18.79 12.79 8¢

4th 19.94 16.80 8¢

2002 Price Range of 
Fiscal Common Stock Cash

Quarter High Low Dividends

1st $16.50 $12.25 6.5¢

2nd 18.40 16.33 6.5¢

3rd 23.99 18.00 6.5¢

4th 24.88 16.97 8¢
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Year ended August 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $2,875,885 $2,479,941 $ 2,470,133
Costs and expenses:

Cost of goods sold 2,586,845 2,162,527 2,172,813
Selling, general and administrative expenses 231,037 220,883 212,428
Employees’ retirement plans 12,271 14,685 10,611
Interest expense 15,338 18,708 27,608
Litigation accrual — — 8,258

2,845,491 2,416,803 2,431,718

Earnings before income taxes 30,394 63,138 38,415

Income taxes 11,490 22,613 14,643

Net earnings $ 18,904 $ 40,525 $ 23,772

Basic earnings per share $ 0.67 $ 1.48 $ 0.91

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.66 $ 1.43 $ 0.90

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
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August 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2003 2002

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 75,058 $ 124,397
Accounts receivable (less allowance for collection 

losses of $9,275 and $8,877) 397,490 350,885
Inventories 310,816 268,040
Other 61,053 50,930

Total current assets 844,417 794,252

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land 34,617 29,099
Buildings 127,780 119,592
Equipment 747,207 727,650
Leasehold improvements 38,117 34,637
Construction in process 15,503 10,801

963,224 921,779

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (588,842) (543,624)

374,382 378,155

Other assets 56,607 57,669

$ 1,275,406 $ 1,230,076

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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August 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2003 2002

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Short-term trade financing arrangement $ 15,000 $ —
Accounts payable 300,662 275,232
Accrued expenses and other payables 126,971 133,608
Income taxes payable 1,718 5,676
Current maturities of long-term debt 640 631

Total current liabilities 444,991 415,147

Deferred income taxes 44,419 32,813

Other long-term liabilities 24,066 24,841

Long-term debt 254,997 255,969

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Capital stock:

Preferred stock — —
Common stock, par value $5.00 per share: 
authorized 40,000,000 shares; issued 32,265,166 shares; 
outstanding 27,994,690 and 28,518,453 shares 161,326 161,326

Additional paid-in capital 863 170
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 2,368 (1,458)
Retained earnings 401,869 392,004

566,426 552,042

Less treasury stock 4,270,476 and 3,746,713 shares at cost (59,493) (50,736)

506,933 501,306

$1,275,406 $ 1,230,076

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Cash Flows From (Used By) Operating Activities:

Net earnings $ 18,904 $ 40,525 $ 23,772
Adjustments to earnings not requiring cash:

Depreciation and amortization 61,203 61,579 67,272
Provision for losses on receivables 5,162 3,985 4,371
Deferred income taxes 11,605 2,408 (726)
Tax benefits from stock plans 330 4,467 404
Gain on sale of SMI-Owen — (5,234) —
Other (256) (307) (148)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect 
of acquisitions and sale of SMI-Owen:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (71,938) (48,690) (8,276)
Funding from accounts receivable sold 18,662 — 58,498
Decrease (increase) in inventories (40,676) (37,206) 46,508
Decrease (increase) in other assets (1,028) 912 5,837
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued 
expenses, other payables and income taxes 14,594 66,927 (2,389)
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (1,275) 7,231 (2,431)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 15,287 96,597 192,692

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (49,792) (47,223) (53,022)
Acquisition of Coil Steels Group, net of cash received — (6,834) —
Acquisition of fabrication businesses (13,416) — —
Sale of assets of SMI-Owen — 19,705 —
Sales of property, plant and equipment 1,388 3,496 2,866

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (61,820) (30,856) (50,156)

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities:

Short-term trade financing arrangement 15,000 — —
Short-term borrowings, net change — (9,981) (88,673)
Payments on long-term debt (373) (10,101) (8,786)
Stock issued under incentive and purchase plans 6,216 30,238 4,383
Treasury stock acquired (14,610) — (6,716)
Dividends paid (9,039) (7,521) (6,780)

Net Cash From (Used By) Financing Activities (2,806) 2,635 (106,572)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (49,339) 68,376 35,964

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 124,397 56,021 20,057

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 75,058 $ 124,397 $ 56,021

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Accumulated Treasury Stock
Additional Other 

Number of Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Number of
(in thousands, except share data) Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Shares Amount Total

Balance, September 1, 2000 16,132,583 $ 80,663 $ 14,231 $(1,591) $405,317 (2,959,908) $(79,815) $ 418,805

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 23,772 23,772
Other comprehensive loss–

Unrealized loss on derivatives,
net of taxes of $7 (14) (14)

Foreign currency translation
adjustment (356) (356)

Comprehensive income 23,402
Cash dividends (6,780) (6,780)
Treasury stock acquired (271,500) (6,716) (6,716)
Stock issued under incentive 

and purchase plans (301) 177,419 4,684 4,383

Balance, August 31, 2001 16,132,583 80,663 13,930 (1,961) 422,309 (3,053,989) (81,847) 433,094

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 40,525 40,525
Other comprehensive income (loss)–

Foreign currency translation
adjustment 513 513

Unrealized loss on derivatives,
net of taxes of $(5) (10) (10)

Comprehensive income 41,028
Cash dividends (7,521) (7,521)
2-for-1 stock split 16,132,583 80,663 (17,354) (63,309) (3,053,989)
Stock issued under incentive 

and purchase plans (873) 2,361,265 31,111 30,238
Tax benefits from stock plans 4,467 4,467

Balance, August 31, 2002 32,265,166 161,326 170 (1,458) 392,004 (3,746,713) (50,736) 501,306

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 18,904 18,904
Other comprehensive income (loss)–

Foreign currency translation
adjustment 3,855 3,855

Unrealized loss on derivatives,
net of taxes of $(16) (29) (29)

Comprehensive income 22,730
Cash dividends (9,039) (9,039)
Treasury stock acquired (951,410) (14,610) (14,610)
Stock issued under incentive 

and purchase plans 363 427,647 5,853 6,216
Tax benefits from stock plans 330 330

Balance, August 31, 2003 32,265,166 $161,326 $ 863 $ 2,368 $401,869 (4,270,476) $(59,493) $ 506,933

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. S U M MARY O F S I G N I F I C ANT

ACCOU NTI NG P OL IC I ES

Nature of Operations The Company manufactures,
recycles and markets steel and metal products and
related materials. Its manufacturing and recycling facil-
ities and primary markets are located in the Sunbelt
from the mid-Atlantic area through the West. Through
its global marketing offices, the Company markets and
distributes steel and nonferrous metal products and
other industrial products worldwide. As more fully dis-
cussed in Note 13, the manufacturing segment is the
most dominant in terms of capital assets and adjusted
operating profit.

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its sub-
sidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Investments in 20% to 50% owned affiliates are
accounted for on the equity method. All investments
under 20% are accounted for under the cost method. 

Revenue Recognition Generally, sales are recognized
when title passes to the customer. Some of the revenues
related to the steel fabrication operations are recognized
on the percentage of completion method. Due to uncer-
tainties inherent in the estimation process, it is at least
reasonably possible that completion costs for certain
projects will be further revised in the near-term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers
temporary investments that are short term (generally
with original maturities of three months or less) and
highly liquid to be cash equivalents.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Inventory cost for most domestic inventories is
determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method;
cost of international and remaining inventories is deter-
mined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Elements of cost in finished goods inventory in
addition to the cost of material include depreciation,
amortization, utilities, consumable production sup-
plies, maintenance and production wages. Also, the
costs of departments that support production includ-
ing materials management and quality control, are
allocated to inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and
equipment is recorded at cost and is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Provision for amortization of leasehold improve-
ments is made at annual rates based upon the estimated
useful lives of the assets or terms of the leases, whichever
is shorter. At August 31, 2003, the useful lives used for
depreciation and amortization were as follows: 

Buildings 7 to 40 years
Equipment 3 to 15 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years

We evaluate the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment whenever a change in circumstances
indicates that the carrying value may not be recover-
able from the undiscounted future cash flows from
operations. If we determine that impairment exists, we
reduce the net book values to fair values as warranted.
Major maintenance is expensed as incurred.

Start-Up Costs Start-up costs associated with the acqui-
sition and expansion of manufacturing and recycling
facilities are expensed as incurred.

Environmental Costs The Company accrues liabilities
for environmental investigation and remediation costs
based upon estimates regarding the number of sites for
which the Company will be responsible, the scope and
cost of work to be performed at each site, the portion of
costs that will be shared with other parties and the tim-
ing of remediation. Where amounts and timing can be
reliably estimated, amounts are discounted. Where
timing and amounts cannot be reasonably determined,
a range is estimated and the lower end of the range is
recognized on an undiscounted basis.

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts
for stock options granted to employees and directors
using the intrinsic value based method of accounting.
Under this method, the Company does not recognize
compensation expense for the stock options because
the exercise price is equal to the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of the grant.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to
calculate the pro forma stock-based compensation
costs. The following assumptions were required as of
August 31:
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2003 2002 2001

Risk-free interest rate 3.05% 4.42% 4.84%

Expected life 5.44 years 5.44 years 4.60 years

Expected volatility .257 .250 .232

Expected dividend yield 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%

If the Company had used the Black-Scholes fair-value
based method of accounting, net earnings and earnings
per share would have been reduced to the pro forma
amounts listed in the table below. For purposes of pro
forma earnings disclosures, the assumed compensation
expense is amortized over the options’ vesting periods.
The pro forma information includes options granted in
preceding years.
(in thousands,
except per share data) 2003 2002 2001

Net earnings, as reported $ 18,904 $ 40,525 $ 23,772

Pro forma stock-based

compensation cost 1,875 1,637 1,195

Net earnings, pro forma $ 17,029 $ 38,888 $ 22,577

Net earnings per share, as reported

Basic $ 0.67 $ 1.48 $ 0.91

Diluted $ 0.66 $ 1.43 $ 0.90

Net earnings per share, pro forma

Basic $ 0.60 $ 1.42 $ 0.86

Diluted $ 0.60 $ 1.37 $ 0.86

The Black-Scholes weighted-average per share fair
value of the options granted in 2003, 2002 and 2001
was $3.47, $4.52 and $2.77, respectively.

Income Taxes The Company and its U.S. subsidiaries
file a consolidated federal income tax return, and federal
income taxes are allocated to subsidiaries based upon
their respective taxable income or loss. Deferred income
taxes are provided for temporary differences between
financial and tax reporting. The principal differences
are described in Note 6, Income Taxes. Benefits from
tax credits are reflected currently in earnings. The
Company provides for taxes on unremitted earnings of
foreign subsidiaries.

Foreign Currency The functional currency of the Com-
pany’s international subsidiaries in Australia, the
United Kingdom, and Germany is the local currency.
Effective September 1, 2002, most of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Europe changed their functional
currency to the Euro. This change did not materially
impact the financial condition or results of operations
of the Company. The remaining international sub-
sidiaries’ functional currency is the United States
dollar. Translation adjustments are reported as a com-
ponent of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial state-
ments in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make
significant estimates regarding assets and liabilities and
associated revenues and expenses. Management believes
these estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results
may vary.

Derivatives The Company records derivatives on the
balance sheet as assets or liabilities, measured at fair
value. Gains or losses from the changes in the values of
the derivatives are recorded in the statement of earn-
ings, or are deferred if they are highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of the hedged items during the term of the hedge.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been
made in the 2002 and 2001 financial statements to
conform to the classifications used in the current year.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards The Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” effective September 1, 2002. Goodwill was no
longer amortized after that date. Goodwill was $6.8
million at August 31, 2003 and 2002. The comparison
of 2003 to the prior year period was as follows:

Year ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Reported net earnings $ 18,904 $ 40,525 $ 23,772

Add: goodwill amortization — 684 682

Adjusted net earnings $ 18,904 $ 41,209 $ 24,454

The goodwill amortization was $0.02 per basic and
diluted share for the year ended August 31, 2002, and
$0.03 per basic and diluted share for the year ended
August 31, 2001. 

Effective September 1, 2002, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations,” which requires entities to record the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation
when it is incurred by increasing the carrying amount
of the related long-lived asset. The liability is accreted
to its present value each period, and the capitalized
cost is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets.
The Company has asset retirement obligations relating
to landfills which were no longer in use at the date of
adoption of SFAS No. 143. The Company had previ-
ously recorded environmental liabilities related to the
capping, closure and monitoring costs required for
these landfills. Therefore, the transition to SFAS No.
143 did not have a significant impact on the Com-
pany’s net earnings and related per share amounts. At
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August 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had recorded
$1.5 million and $1.7 million, respectively,  relating
to the landfill obligations.

In September 2002, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.” The adoption of SFAS No. 144
did not significantly affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting
for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,”
for all such activities initiated after December 31,
2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a
significant impact on the results of operations or finan-
cial position or cash flows of the Company.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation (FIN)
No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees on Indebtedness of Others,” which applies
to all guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002. The Company has not entered into or modified
any significant guarantees since December 31, 2002,
and therefore, no liability was recorded at August 31,
2003. The Company’s existing guarantees at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 had been given at the request of a
customer and its surety bond issuer. The Company has
agreed to indemnify the surety against all costs that
the surety may incur should the customer fail to per-
form its obligations under construction contracts
covered by payment and performance bonds issued by
the surety. As of August 31, 2003, the surety had
issued bonds in the total amount (without reduction
for the work performed to date) of $11.9 million,
which are subject to the Company’s guarantee obliga-
tion under the indemnity agreement. The fair value of
these guarantees was not significant.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The con-
solidation requirement applies to entities established
on or prior to January 31, 2003, in the first fiscal year
or interim period ending after December 15, 2003.
The Company does not expect FIN No. 46 to have an
impact on its financial reporting.

2. SAL E S O F AC C O U NTS

R E C E IVAB L E

The Company has an accounts receivable securitization
program (Securitization Program) which it utilizes as a
cost-effective, short-term financing alternative. Under
the Securitization Program, the Company and several
of its subsidiaries (the Originators) periodically sell

accounts receivable to the Company’s wholly-owned
consolidated special purpose subsidiary (CMCR).
CMCR is structured to be a bankruptcy-remote entity.
CMCR, in turn, sells an undivided percentage owner-
ship interest (Participation Interest) in the pool of
receivables to an affiliate of a third party financial
institution (Buyer). CMCR may sell undivided inter-
ests of up to $130 million, depending on the
Company’s level of financing needs.

This Securitization Program is designed to enable
receivables sold by the Company to CMCR to consti-
tute true sales under U.S. Bankruptcy Laws, and the
Company has received an opinion from counsel relating
to the “true sale” nature of the program. As a result,
these receivables are available to satisfy CMCR’s own
obligations to its third party creditors. The Company
accounts for the Securitization Program in accordance
with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities.” The transfers meet all of the criteria for a
sale under SFAS No. 140. At the time a Participation
Interest in the pool of receivables is sold, the amount is
removed from the consolidated balance sheet and the
proceeds from the sale are reflected as cash provided by
operating activities.

At August 31, 2003 and 2002, uncollected accounts
receivable of $152 million and $146 million, respec-
tively, had been sold to CMCR, and the Company’s
undivided interest in these receivables was subordinate
to any interest owned by the Buyer. At August 31,
2003 and 2002, no Participation Interests in CMCR’s
accounts receivable pool were owned by the Buyer and,
therefore, none were reflected as a reduction in
accounts receivable on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets.

Discounts (losses) on the sales of accounts receivable
to the Buyer under this Program were $584 thousand,
$793 thousand and $976 thousand for the years ended
August 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These
losses represented primarily the costs of funds and were
included in selling, general and administrative
expenses. The carrying amount of the Company’s
retained interest in the receivables approximated fair
value due to the short-term nature of the collection
period. The retained interest is determined reflecting
100% of any allowance for collection losses on the
entire receivables pool. No other material assumptions
are made in determining the fair value of the retained
interest. The Company is responsible for servicing the
entire pool of receivables. At August 31, 2003, the car-
rying amount of the Company’s retained interest
(representing the Company’s interest in the receivable
pool) was $152 million (100%) in the revolving pool
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of receivables of $152 million. The carrying amount of
the Company’s retained interest was $146 million
(100%) in the revolving pool of receivables of $146
million at August 31, 2002. 

In addition to the Securitization Program described
above, the Company’s international subsidiaries peri-
odically sell accounts receivable. These arrangements
also constitute true sales and, once the accounts are
sold, they are no longer available to satisfy the Com-
pany’s creditors in the event of bankruptcy.
Uncollected accounts receivable that had been sold
under these arrangements and removed from the con-
solidated balance sheets were $20.8 million and $2.1
million at August 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

3. I NVE NTOR I ES

Before deduction of LIFO reserves of $17,403,000 and
$8,074,000 at August 31, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively, inventories valued under the first-in, first-out
method approximated replacement cost.

At August 31, 2003 and 2002, 64% and 72%,
respectively, of total inventories were valued at LIFO.
The remainder of inventories, valued at FIFO, con-
sisted mainly of material dedicated to the marketing
and distribution business.

The majority of the Company’s inventories are in the
form of finished goods, with minimal work in process.
Approximately $20.5 million and $16.5 million were in
raw materials at August 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

4. C R E DIT 

AR RAN G E M E NTS

In August 2003, the Company increased its commer-
cial paper program to permit maximum borrowings of
up to $275 million, an increase from the prior year
$174.5 million level. The Company’s commercial
paper capacity is reduced by outstanding standby let-
ters of credit under the 2003 program which totalled
$20.6 million at August 31, 2003. 

It is the Company’s policy to maintain contractual
bank credit lines equal to 100% of the amount of all
commercial paper outstanding. On August 8, 2003,
the Company arranged an unsecured revolving credit
agreement with a group of sixteen banks consisting of
a three-year, $275 million facility. These agreements
provide for borrowing in United States dollars indexed
to LIBOR. Facility fees of 22.5 basis points per annum

are payable on the multi-year credit lines. The revolv-
ing credit agreement includes various covenants. The
most restrictive of these requires maintenance of an
interest coverage ratio of greater than three times and a
debt/capitalization ratio of 55% (as defined). No com-
pensating balances are required. The Company was in
compliance with these requirements at August 31, 2003.

At August 31, 2003 and 2002, no borrowings were
outstanding under the commercial paper program or
the related revolving credit agreements.

The Company has numerous informal credit facilities
available from domestic and international banks. These
credit facilities are priced at bankers’ acceptance rates or
on a cost of funds basis. No compensating balances or
commitment fees are required under these credit facili-
ties. Amounts outstanding on these facilities relate to
trade payables settled under Bankers Acceptances.

During August 2003, an international subsidiary of
the Company entered into a $15 million short-term
trade financing arrangement with a financial institu-
tion as a risk management technique relating to the
subsidiary’s purchase agreement with a Chinese sup-
plier. Under the agreements, the Company advanced
the $15 million to the supplier and will repay the bank
only after the product is shipped in conformance with
the specifications in the supply agreement. In the
event of a default by the supplier, the Company’s obli-
gation to the bank would not exceed $1.5 million. The
advance to the supplier was recorded in other current
assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Long-term debt and amounts due within one year
are as follows, as of August 31:
(in thousands) 2003 2002

7.20% notes due July 2005 $104,185 $104,775

6.75% notes due February 2009 100,000 100,000

6.80% notes due August 2007 50,000 50,000

Other 1,452 1,825

255,637 256,600

Less current maturities 640 631

$254,997 $255,969

Interest on these notes is payable semiannually. 
On April 9, 2002, the Company entered into two

interest rate swaps to convert a portion of its fixed
interest rate long-term debt commitment to a floating
interest commitment. These arrangements adjust the
Company’s fixed to floating interest rate exposure as
well as reduce overall financing costs. The swaps effec-
tively convert interest on the $100 million debt due
July 2005 from a fixed rate of 7.20% to a six month
LIBOR (determined in arrears) plus 2.02%. The float-
ing rate was 3.13% at July 15, 2003, the most recent
reset date. The total fair value of both swaps, including



54

accrued interest, was $4.6 million and $5.2 million at
August 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is
recorded in other long-term assets, with a corresponding
increase in the 7.20% long-term notes, representing
the change in fair value of the hedged debt, net of
accrued interest. These hedges were highly effective for
the years ended August 31, 2003 and 2002.

The aggregate amounts of all long-term debt matu-
rities for the five years following August 31, 2003 are
(in thousands): 2004–$640; 2005–$104,819;
2006–$65; 2007–$50,028; 2008 and there-
after–$100,085.

Interest expense is comprised of the following: 
Year ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Long-term debt $ 13,835 $ 16,499 $ 17,532

Commercial paper 189 145 7,076

Notes payable 1,314 2,064 3,000

$ 15,338 $ 18,708 $ 27,608

Interest of $254,000, $447,000, and $1,111,000 was
capitalized in the cost of property, plant and equipment
constructed in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
Interest of $14,393,000, $18,879,000, and $28,704,000
was paid in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

5. FI NAN C IAL I NSTR U M E NTS,  

MAR KET AN D C R E DIT  R ISK

Generally accepted accounting principles require dis-
closure of an estimate of the fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments as of year end. These
estimated fair values disregard management intentions
concerning these instruments and do not represent liq-
uidation proceeds or settlement amounts currently
available to the Company. Differences between historical
presentation and estimated fair values can occur for
many reasons including taxes, commissions, prepay-
ment penalties, make-whole provisions and other
restrictions as well as the inherent limitations in any
estimation technique.

Due to near-term maturities, allowances for collec-
tion losses, investment grade ratings and security
provided, the following financial instruments’ carrying
amounts are considered equivalent to fair value:

• Cash and cash equivalents
• Accounts receivable/payable
• Short-term trade financing arrangement
The Company’s long-term debt is predominantly

publicly held. Fair value was determined by indicated
market values.

August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002

Long-Term Debt:

Carrying amount $255,637 $256,600

Estimated fair value 278,497 259,656

The Company maintains both corporate and divisional
credit departments. Credit limits are set for customers.
Credit insurance is used for some of the Company’s
divisions. Letters of credit issued or confirmed by
sound financial institutions are obtained to further
ensure prompt payment in accordance with terms of
sale; generally, collateral is not required.

In the normal course of its marketing activities, the
Company transacts business with substantially all sectors
of the metals industry. Customers are internationally
dispersed, cover the spectrum of manufacturing and
distribution, deal with various types and grades of
metal and have a variety of end markets in which they
sell. The Company’s historical experience in collection
of accounts receivable falls within the recorded
allowances. Due to these factors, no additional credit
risk, beyond amounts provided for collection losses, is
believed inherent in the Company’s accounts receivable.

During the year ended August 31, 2003, the Company
acquired $1.5 million in property, plant and equip-
ment in a noncash transaction after foreclosing on a
delinquent note receivable from a customer.

The Company’s worldwide operations and product
lines expose it to risks from fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and metals commodity prices.
The objective of the Company’s risk management pro-
gram is to mitigate these risks using futures or forward
contracts (derivative instruments). The Company
enters into metal commodity forward contracts to mit-
igate the risk of unanticipated declines in gross margin
due to the volatility of the commodities’ prices, and
enters into foreign currency forward contracts which
match the expected settlements for purchases and sales
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company des-
ignates as hedges for accounting purposes only those
contracts which closely match the terms of the
underlying transaction. These hedges resulted in sub-
stantially no ineffectiveness in the statements of
earnings for the years ended August 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001. Certain of the foreign currency and all of the
commodity contracts were not designated as hedges for
accounting purposes, although management believes
they are essential economic hedges. The changes in fair
value of these instruments resulted in a $328 thousand
decrease, a $208 thousand decrease and a $452 thou-
sand increase in cost of goods sold for the years ended
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August 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. All of
the instruments are highly liquid and none are entered
into for speculative purposes. 

At August 31, 2003 and 2002, derivative assets
recorded in other current assets were $1.8 million and
$1.6 million, respectively, and derivative liabilities of
$1.7 million and $1.4 million, respectively, were
recorded in other current liabilities.

See Note 4, Credit Arrangements, regarding the
Company’s interest rate hedges.

6. I NCOM E TAXES 

The provisions for income taxes include the following:
Year ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Current:

United States $ (2,220) $ 18,173 $ 13,498

Foreign 1,848 1,532 8

State and local 257 500 1,863

(115) 20,205 15,369

Deferred 11,605 2,408 (726)

$ 11,490 $ 22,613 $ 14,643

During 2002, the Company favorably resolved all
issues for its federal income tax returns through 1999.
Management reevaluated the tax accruals resulting in a
net decrease of approximately $1,000,000 in 2002.

Taxes of $3,930,000, $11,016,000 and $8,691,000
were paid in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Deferred taxes arise from temporary differences
between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its
reported amount in the financial statements. The
sources and deferred long-term tax liabilities (assets)
associated with these differences are:

August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002

Tax on difference between tax 

and book depreciation $ 41,657 $ 38,457

U.S. taxes provided on foreign 

income and foreign taxes 15,585 11,857

Net operating losses 

(less allowances of $1,703 and $780) (837) (561)

Alternative minimum tax credit (1,713) (1,713)

Other accruals (3,662) (9,183)

Other (6,611) (6,044)

Total $ 44,419 $ 32,813

Current deferred tax assets of $4.4 million and $12.3
million at August 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were
included in other assets on the consolidated balance

sheets. These deferred taxes were largely due to different
book and tax treatments of various allowances and accru-
als. No valuation allowances were required at August 31,
2003 or 2002 for the current deferred tax assets.

The Company uses substantially the same deprecia-
ble lives for tax and book purposes. Changes in
deferred taxes relating to depreciation are mainly
attributable to differences in the basis of underlying
assets recorded under the purchase method of account-
ing. As noted above, the Company provides United
States taxes on unremitted foreign earnings. Net oper-
ating losses consist of $150 million of state net
operating losses that expire during the tax years end-
ing from 2006 to 2023. These assets will be reduced as
tax expense is recognized in future periods. The $1.7
million alternative minimum tax credit is available
indefinitely. The FSC Repeal and Extraterritorial
Income Exclusion Act of 2000 replaced the Foreign
Sales Corporation (FSC) tax benefits with the “extrater-
ritorial income” exemption (ETI) for fiscal year 2002
and the years thereafter. The ETI exclusion maintains
the same level of tax benefit for current FSC users.

The Company’s effective tax rates were 37.8% for
2003, 35.8% for 2002, and 38.1% for 2001. Reconcil-
iations of the United States statutory rates to the
effective rates are as follows:

Year ended August 31,

2003 2002 2001

Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local taxes .6 1.0 3.1

ETI (.9) (1.2) (1.1)

Other 3.1 1.0 1.1

Effective tax rate 37.8% 35.8% 38.1%

7. CAP ITAL STOC K 

On May 20, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
declared a two-for-one stock split in the form of a
100% stock dividend on its common stock. This stock
split was effective June 28, 2002, to shareholders of
record on June 7, 2002. On June 28, 2002 the Com-
pany issued 16,132,583 additional shares of common
stock and transferred $17,354,000 from paid-in capital
and $63,309,000 from retained earnings to common
stock. All applicable share and per share amounts in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been restated to reflect this stock split. Following
the stock split, the Company also instituted a quarterly
cash dividend of eight cents per share on the increased
number of shares.
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Stock Purchase Plan Almost all U.S. resident employ-
ees with a year of service at the beginning of each
calendar year may participate in the Company’s
employee stock purchase plan. The Directors annually
establish the purchase discount from the market price.
The discount was 25% for each of the three years ended
August 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. In January 2003,
the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment
to the plan that increased by 1,000,000 the maximum
number of shares that may be eligible for issuance and
increased the maximum number of shares that an eligible
employee may purchase annually from 200 to 400 shares.
Yearly activity of the stock purchase plan was as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Shares subscribed 289,210 282,780 347,640

Price per share $ 12.35 $ 12.48 $ 9.48

Shares purchased 223,880 257,860 74,480

Price per share $ 12.48 $ 9.48 $ 11.74

Shares available 1,141,946

The Company recorded compensation expense for this
plan of $932,000, $815,000 and $291,000 in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Stock Option Plans The 1986 Stock Incentive Plan
(1986 Plan) ended November 23, 1996, except for
awards outstanding. Under the 1986 Plan, stock
options were awarded to full-time salaried employees.
The option price was the fair market value of the Com-
pany’s stock at the date of grant, and the options are
exercisable two years from date of grant. The outstand-
ing awards under this Plan are 100% vested and expire
through 2006.

The 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (1996 Plan)
was approved in December 1996. Under the 1996
Plan, stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock may be awarded to employees. The
option price for both the stock options and the stock
rights will not be less than the fair market value of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant. The outstanding
awards under the 1996 Plan vest 50% after one year
and 50% after two years from date of grant and will
expire seven years after grant. The terms of the 1996
Plan resulted in additional authorized shares of 62,806
in 2003, 1,073,782 in 2002, and 67,270 in 2001. In
addition, the Company’s shareholders authorized an
additional 1,000,000 shares during 2002.

In January 2000, the Company’s stockholders
approved the 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan and authorized 400,000 shares to be made
available for grant. Under this Plan, each outside
director of the Company will receive annually an
option to purchase 3,000 shares of the Company’s

stock. In addition, any outside director may elect to
receive all or part of fees otherwise payable in the form
of a stock option. The price of these options is the fair
market value of the Company’s stock at the date of the
grant. The options granted automatically vest 50% after
one year and 50% after two years from the grant date.
Options granted in lieu of fees are immediately vested.
All options expire seven years from the date of grant.

Combined information for shares subject to options
for the three plans is as follows:

Weighted
Average Price
Exercise Range

Number Price Per Share

September 1, 2000

Outstanding 4,350,860 $13.47 $ 6.31–15.97

Exercisable 3,559,810 13.06 6.31–15.44

Granted 803,672 11.71 10.95–13.23

Exercised (320,422) 10.70 6.31–15.44

Forfeited (99,932) 13.82 10.99–15.97

Increase authorized 67,270

August 31, 2001

Outstanding 4,734,178 $13.36 $ 9.21–15.97

Exercisable 3,608,052 13.47 9.21–15.97

Granted 805,380 17.28 17.17–21.42

Exercised (2,212,903) 13.13 9.21–15.97

Forfeited (80,920) 14.00 11.76–17.17

Increase authorized 2,073,782

August 31, 2002

Outstanding 3,245,735 $14.46 $10.10–21.42

Exercisable 2,111,744 13.94 10.10–18.05

Granted 847,430 14.56 14.54–15.10

Exercised (211,618) 12.39 13.32–19.24

Forfeited (36,629) 14.66 10.10–17.17

Increase authorized 62,806

August 31, 2003

Outstanding 3,844,918 $14.60 $10.97–21.42

Exercisable 2,655,803 14.24 10.97–21.42

Available for grant 1,189,924

Share information for options at August 31, 2003:
Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Remain- Weighted Weighted

Range of ing Con- Average Average
Exercise Number tractual Exercise Number Exercise

Price Outstanding Life (Yrs) Price Outstanding Price

$10.97–12.25 692,746 3.7 $11.81 692,746 $11.81

13.13–15.10 1,954,972 3.7 14.32 1,134,222 14.16

15.44–21.42 1,197,200 4.6 16.65 828,835 16.39

$10.97–21.42 3,844,918 4.0 $14.60 2,655,803 $14.24
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Preferred Stock Preferred stock has a par value of
$1.00 a share, with 2,000,000 shares authorized. It
may be issued in series, and the shares of each series
shall have such rights and preferences as fixed by the
Board of Directors when authorizing the issuance of
that particular series. There are no shares of preferred
stock outstanding.

Stockholder Rights Plan On July 28, 1999, the Com-
pany’s Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights
plan pursuant to which stockholders were granted pre-
ferred stock rights (Rights) to purchase one
one-thousandth of a share of the Company’s Series A
Preferred Stock for each share of common stock held.
In connection with the adoption of such plan, the
Company designated and reserved 100,000 shares of
preferred stock as Series A Preferred Stock and declared
a dividend of one Right on each outstanding share of
the Company’s common stock. Rights were distrib-
uted to stockholders of record as of August 9, 1999.

The Rights are represented by and traded with the
Company’s common stock. The Rights do not become
exercisable or trade separately from the common stock
unless at least one of the following conditions are met:
a public announcement that a person has acquired
15% or more of the common stock of the Company or
a tender or exchange offer is made for 15% or more of
the common stock of the Company. Should either of
these conditions be met and the Rights become exer-
cisable, each Right will entitle the holder (other than
the acquiring person or group) to buy one one-thou-
sandth of a share of the Series A Preferred Stock at an
exercise price of $150.00. Each fractional share of the
Series A Preferred Stock will essentially be the eco-
nomic equivalent of one share of common stock. Under
certain circumstances, each Right would entitle its
holder to purchase the Company’s stock or shares of the
acquirer’s stock at a 50% discount. The Company’s
Board of Directors may choose to redeem the Rights
(before they become exercisable) at $0.001 per Right.
The Rights expire July 28, 2009.

8. E M P LOYE ES’

R ETI R E M E NT P LAN S

Substantially all employees in the U.S. are covered by
defined contribution profit sharing and savings plans.
These tax qualified plans are maintained and contribu-
tions made in accordance with ERISA. The Company
also provides certain eligible executives benefits pur-
suant to a nonqualified benefit restoration plan (BRP
Plan) equal to amounts that would have been available

under the tax qualified ERISA plans, but are not available
due to limitations of ERISA, tax laws and regulations.
Company contributions, which are discretionary, to all
plans were $12,271,000, $14,685,000, and
$10,611,000, for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The deferred compensation liability under the BRP
Plan was $18.6 million and $14.4 million at August
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and recorded in other
long-term liabilities. Though under no obligation to
fund the plan, the Company has segregated mutual
fund assets in a trust whose current value at August 31,
2003 and 2002 was $14.6 million and $13.2 million,
respectively, and recorded in other long-term assets.

The Company has no significant postretirement
obligations. The Company’s historical costs for
postemployment benefits have not been significant
and are not expected to be in the future.

9. COM M ITM E NTS AN D

CONTI NG E NC I ES

Minimum lease commitments payable by the Com-
pany and its consolidated subsidiaries for
noncancelable operating leases in effect at August 31,
2003, are as follows for the fiscal periods specified:

Real
(in thousands) Equipment Estate

2004 $ 4,000 $ 5,318

2005 3,188 4,689

2006 2,290 3,901

2007 1,737 3,328

2008 and thereafter 2,483 9,736

$ 13,698 $ 26,972

Total rental expense was $13,428,000, $11,774,000
and $11,483,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Construction Contract Disputes During 2001, the
Company increased its litigation accrual (included in
accrued expenses and other payables) by $8.3 million
due to an adverse judgment from a trial. At August 31,
2002, $9.6 million was accrued (including interest).
The judgment was upheld on appeal and paid in 2003.

In another matter, a subsidiary of the Company,
SMI-Owen Steel Company, Inc. (SMI-Owen) entered
into a fixed price contract with the design/builder gen-
eral contractor (D/B) to furnish, erect and install
structural steel and certain other materials along with
related design and engineering work for the construc-
tion of a large hotel and casino complex. In connection
with the contract, the D/B secured insurance under a
subcontractor/vendor default protection policy which
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named the Company as an insured in lieu of perform-
ance and payment bonds. The Company made a claim
against the insurance company for expenses incurred
from the default of a large subcontractor. During 2002,
the Company and the insurance company settled
related litigation filed by the Company, and the Com-
pany recovered $15 million which included recovery of
a $6.6 million claim receivable, receipt of an addi-
tional amount ($7.4 million), the release of the balance
of $1 million of previously escrowed funds and, subject
to certain contingencies, reimbursement of an addi-
tional amount (up to $3 million). The $7.4 million in
excess of the claim receivable and escrow amount
released was recorded as deferred insurance proceeds
(in other long-term liabilities at August 31, 2002)
pending final resolution of the Company’s disputes
with the D/B. At August 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company maintained contract receivables of $7.2 mil-
lion from the D/B. Such amounts are included within
other assets on the accompanying balance sheets. During
2003, SMI-Owen settled, contingent upon completion
and approval by the Bankruptcy Court which has juris-
diction over one of the parties, all disputes between
SMI-Owen, the D/B and the owner of the Project.
SMI-Owen will pay $1.25 million of the $3.5 million
settlement payment with $2.25 million to be paid by
the insurance company. Final resolution of this dispute
will resolve all material claims asserted against SMI-
Owen arising from the Project. The Company reduced
its accrual for the deferred insurance proceeds by
$937,000 at August 31, 2003 to reflect this settle-
ment. The settlement agreement provides that
SMI-Owen reserves all rights with regards to pending
litigation against an insurance broker for insurance
benefits not received by SMI-Owen due to the broker’s
acts, errors, omissions and other conduct related to the
insurance program for the Project. 

The Company is involved in various other claims
and lawsuits incidental to its business. In the opinion
of management, these claims and suits in the aggregate
will not have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations or the financial position of the Company. 

Environmental and Other Matters In the ordinary
course of conducting its business, the Company
becomes involved in litigation, administrative pro-
ceedings and governmental investigations, including
environmental matters. Management believes that
adequate provision has been made in the financial
statements for the potential impact of these issues, and

that the outcomes will not significantly impact the
results of operations or the financial position of the
Company, although they may have a material impact
on earnings for a particular quarter.

The Company has received notices from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or equivalent
state agency that it is considered a potentially respon-
sible party (PRP) at fourteen sites, none owned by the
Company, and may be obligated under the Compre-
hensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) or similar state
statute to conduct remedial investigations, feasibility
studies, remediation and/or removal of alleged releases
of hazardous substances or to reimburse the EPA for
such activities. The Company is involved in litigation
or administrative proceedings with regard to several of
these sites in which the Company is contesting, or at the
appropriate time may contest, its liability at the sites. In
addition, the Company has received information
requests with regard to other sites which may be under
consideration by the EPA as potential CERCLA sites.

Some of these environmental matters or other pro-
ceedings may result in fines, penalties or judgments
being assessed against the Company. While the Com-
pany is unable to estimate precisely the ultimate dollar
amount of exposure to loss in connection with the
above-referenced matters, it makes accruals as war-
ranted. Due to evolving remediation technology,
changing regulations, possible third-party contribu-
tions, the inherent shortcomings of the estimation
process and other factors, amounts accrued could vary
significantly from amounts paid. Accordingly, it is not
possible to estimate a meaningful range of possible
exposure. It is the opinion of the Company’s manage-
ment that the outcome of these proceedings,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the results of operations or the
financial position of the Company.
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10. EAR N I NGS P E R S HAR E

In calculating earnings per share, there were no adjust-
ments to net earnings to arrive at income for any years
presented. The stock options granted June 7, 2002,
with total outstanding share commitments of 10,000
at year end, are antidilutive. 

August 31,

2003 2002 2001

Shares outstanding 

for basic 

earnings per share 28,202,979 27,377,083 26,059,122

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options/

purchase plans 402,616 898,208 261,866

Shares outstanding for 

diluted earnings 

per share 28,605,595 28,275,291 26,320,988

At August 31, 2003, the Company had authoriza-
tion to purchase 1,116,152 of its common shares.

11. ACC R U E D E XP E NSES 

AN D OTH E R PAYAB LES

August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002

Salaries, wages and commissions $ 37,698 $ 31,544

Insurance 13,562 12,987

Employees’ retirement plans 11,325 15,086

Advance billings on contracts 10,787 7,855

Taxes other than income taxes 8,699 9,470

Freight 8,228 5,980

Litigation accruals 6,650 16,416

Interest 1,833 1,901

Other 28,189 32,369

$126,971 $133,608

12. ACQU IS IT I ONS

In January 2003, the Company acquired substantially
all of the operating assets of E.L. Wills, Inc., a rebar
fabrication company located in Fresno, California, spe-
cializing in commercial and industrial construction
throughout the states of California and Nevada for
$4.2 million cash. 

In May, 2003, the Company acquired substantially
all of the operating assets of the Denver, Colorado loca-

tion of Symons Corporation for $5.6 million cash. This
acquisition expands the Company’s concrete form and
construction-related product sales in the western part
of the United States. 

Effective August 31, 2003, the Company acquired
substantially all of the operating assets of Dunn Del Re
Steel, Inc., a rebar fabrication company located in
Chandler, Arizona for $3.6 million cash and the
assumption of a $625 thousand note payable. Its pri-
mary market is Arizona, extending also to Utah, New
Mexico, California and Nevada. The purchase price
allocation for Dun Del Re Steel has been prepared on a
preliminary basis, and reasonable changes may be
made following valuation by business appraisers of the
intangible assets. 

Operations of the acquired entities are reflected in
the consolidated statement of earnings from the date of
their respective acquisitions. The pro forma impact on
operations, as of the beginning of 2003, of these acqui-
sitions would not have been materially different from
the actual results.

The following is a summary of the allocation of pur-
chase price for these acquisitions as of the date the
assets were acquired (in thousands):

E.L. Dunn
Wills Symons Del Re Total

Inventory $ 1,227 $ 173 $ 575 $ 1,975

Property, plant 

and equipment 2,215 55 2,435 4,705

Rental equipment — 4,400 — 4,400

Identifiable intangible 

assets 705 1,000 1,220 2,925

Note payable — — (625) (625)

Other 52 — (16) 36

Total $ 4,199 $ 5,628 $ 3,589 $ 13,416

Rental equipment and intangible assets are included
in long-term other assets on the August 31, 2003 con-
solidated balance sheet. The intangible assets acquired
include trade names, customer lists and backlogs, all of
which have finite lives and are being amortized. The
estimated annual amortization of intangibles is not
expected to be material.

In July 2003, the Company’s subsidiary, Commercial
Metals (International) AG, entered into a purchase agree-
ment to buy 71.1% of the outstanding shares of Huta
Zawiercie, S.A. in Zawiercie, Poland for approximately
$50 million in cash and $32 million assumed long-term
debt. Huta Zawiercie operates a steel minimill similar to
those operated by the Company’s steel group. Its annual
capacity is about 1 million tons consisting mainly of
rebar and wire rod products. This transaction is expected
to be completed by December 15, 2003.
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13. B USI N E S S S EG M E NTS

The Company’s reportable segments are based on strate-
gic business areas, which offer different products and
services. These segments have different lines of manage-
ment responsibility as each business requires different
marketing strategies and management expertise.

The Company has three reportable segments consist-
ing of manufacturing, recycling, and marketing and
distribution. Manufacturing consists of the CMC steel
group’s minimills, steel and joist fabrication opera-
tions, fence post manufacturing plants, heat treating,
railcar rebuilding and construction-related products,
as well as Howell Metal Company’s copper tube manu-
facturing facility. The manufacturing segment’s
business operates primarily in the southern and west-
ern United States. Recycling consists of the Secondary
Metals Processing Division’s scrap processing and sales
operations primarily in Texas, Florida and the southern
United States. Marketing and distribution includes
both domestic and international operations for the
sales,  distribution and processing of both ferrous and
nonferrous metals and other industrial products. The
segment’s activities consist only of physical transac-
tions and not speculation.

The Company uses adjusted operating profit to
measure segment performance. Intersegment sales are
generally priced at prevailing market prices. Certain
corporate administrative expenses are allocated to seg-
ments based upon the nature of the expense. The
accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in the summary of significant account-
ing policies.

The following presents information regarding the
Company’s domestic operations and operations outside
of the United States:

External Net Sales for the
Year ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

United States $1,689,645 $1,708,863 $1,714,898

Non United States 1,186,240 771,078 755,235

Total $2,875,885 $2,479,941 $2,470,133

Long-Lived Assets
as of August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

United States $ 409,298 $ 421,332 $ 449,121

Non United States 21,691 14,492 9,812

Total $` 430,989 $ 435,824 $ 458,933

Summarized data for the Company’s international
operations located outside of the United States (princi-
pally in Europe, Australia and the Far East) are as
follows:

Year ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales–unaffiliated 

customers $ 626,257 $ 378,745 $ 266,609

Total assets 186,322 124,870 83,743

The following is a summary of certain financial infor-
mation by reportable segment:
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Adjustments 
Marketing and

2003 (dollars in thousands) Manufacturing Recycling and Distribution Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

Net sales–unaffiliated customers $ 1,336,095 $409,554 $ 1,129,777 $ 459 $ — $2,875,885

Intersegment sales 3,420 31,890 19,920 — ( 55,230) —

Net sales 1,339,515 441,444 1,149,697 459 (55,230) 2,875,885

Adjusted operating profit (loss) 20,365 15,206 21,784 (11,039) — 46,316

Interest expense* 3,376 844 1,214 10,158 (254) 15,338

Capital expenditures 43,452 5,765 3,560 2,428 — 55,205

Depreciation and amortization 50,227 7,936 2,134 906 — 61,203

Total assets 738,944 106,749 342,752 86,961 — 1,275,406

2002 (dollars in thousands)

Net sales–unaffiliated customers $ 1,362,308 $354,387 $ 762,584 $ 662 $ — $2,479,941

Intersegment sales 3,587 23,667 14,428 — (41,682) —

Net sales 1,365,895 378,054 777,012 662 (41,682) 2,479,941

Adjusted operating profit (loss) 71,447 5,098 14,196 (8,102) — 82,639

Interest expense* 3,949 1,011 1,050 13,145 (447) 18,708

Capital expenditures 39,046 4,723 9,323 965 — 54,057

Depreciation and amortization 49,538 9,650 1,609 782 — 61,579

Total assets 720,450 98,847 262,111 148,668 — 1,230,076

2001 (dollars in thousands)

Net sales–unaffiliated customers $ 1,344,483 $371,298 $ 752,723 $ 1,629 $ — $2,470,133

Intersegment sales 5,375 22,539 18,433 — (46,347) —

Net sales 1,349,858 393,837 771,156 1,629 (46,347) 2,470,133

Adjusted operating profit (loss) 56,700 (2,324) 7,833 4,790 — 66,999

Interest expense* 10,585 2,165 1,332 14,637 (1,111) 27,608

Capital expenditures 45,979 5,587 1,208 248 — 53,022

Depreciation and amortization 54,402 11,005 1,124 741 — 67,272

Total assets 739,625 93,268 188,405 60,648 — 1,081,946

* Includes intercompany interest in the segments.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the non-GAAP measure, adjusted operating profit (loss) to net
earnings (loss).

Adjusted Operating Profit Reconciliation

Marketing and Corporate and
(in millions) Manufacturing Recycling Distribution Eliminations Total

Year ended August 31, 2003:

Net earnings (loss) $ 13,557 $ 10,006 $ 15,529 $ (20,188) $ 18,904

Income taxes 6,477 5,104 4,753 (4,844) 11,490

Interest expense 130 5 1,313 13,890 15,338

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable 201 91 189 103 584

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 20,365 $ 15,206 $ 21,784 $ (11,039) $ 46,316

Year ended August 31, 2002:

Net earnings (loss) $ 45,026 $ 3,741 $ 8,085 $ (16,327) $ 40,525

Income taxes 25,739 1,187 3,769 (8,082) 22,613

Interest expense 291 4 2,039 16,374 18,708

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable 391 166 303 (67) 793

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 71,447 $ 5,098 $ 14,196 $ (8,102) $ 82,639

Year ended August 31, 2001:

Net earnings (loss) $ 34,826 $ (1,579) $ 3,612 $ (13,087) $ 23,772

Income taxes 21,150 (903) 2,139 (7,743) 14,643

Interest expense 357 12 1,798 25,441 27,608

Discounts on sales of accounts receivable 367 146 284 179 976

Adjusted operating profit (loss) $ 56,700 $ (2,324) $ 7,833 $ 4,790 $ 66,999
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14. QUARTE R LY F I NAN C IAL

DATA (U NAU DITE D)  

Summarized quarterly financial data for fiscal 2003,
2002 and 2001 are as follows (in thousands except per
share data):

Three Months Ended 2003

Nov. 30 Feb. 28 May 31 Aug. 31

Net sales $636,179 $660,816 $774,151 $ 804,739

Gross profit 61,060 67,919 74,419 85,641

Net earnings 2,205 2,933 3,022 10,744

Basic EPS 0.08 0.10 0.11 0.38

Diluted EPS 0.08 0.10 0.11 0.38

Three Months Ended 2002

Nov. 30 Feb. 28 May 31 Aug. 31

Net sales $572,168 $574,325 $651,604 $ 681,844

Gross profit 78,095 74,880 92,120 72,319

Net earnings 8,482 6,572 16,433 9,038

Basic EPS 0.32 0.24 0.59 0.32

Diluted EPS 0.32 0.24 0.56 0.31

Three Months Ended 2001

Nov. 30 Feb. 28 May 31 Aug. 31

Net sales $601,926 $584,188 $629,435 $ 654,584

Gross profit 70,844 58,253 82,893 85,330

Net earnings (loss) (2,421) 1,590 10,569 14,034

Basic EPS (loss) (0.09) 0.06 0.41 0.54

Diluted EPS (loss) (0.09) 0.06 0.40 0.53

The quantities and costs used in calculating cost of
goods sold on a quarterly basis include estimates of the
annual LIFO effect. The actual effect cannot be known
until the year end physical inventory is completed and
quantity and price indices are developed. The quarterly
cost of goods sold above includes such estimates. The
final determination of inventory quantities and prices
resulted in $857 thousand after-tax expense in the
fourth quarter 2003. Fourth quarter 2002 net earnings
decreased $1.1 million after the final determination of
quantities and prices was made. Fourth quarter 2001
net earnings were not significantly impacted. 

In recording accruals for workers’ compensation
expense, management relies on prior years’ experience
and information from third party administrators in
making estimates. Results at the end of fiscal year
2002 and 2001 indicated a decline in the number of
claims resulting in a $1.0 million and $2.1 million
reduction, respectively, in the accrual during the
fourth quarters.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, a subsidiary
of the Company was notified that a customer, now in
bankruptcy proceedings, alleged the subsidiary
received payments from the customer within 90 days
of bankruptcy filing which are voidable and should be
returned to the bankruptcy estate. The payments were
for materials and services sold by the subsidiary to the
customer. The company had accrued $1 million as of
May 31, 2003 relating to this matter. During the three
months ended August 31, 2003, this dispute was set-
tled subject to Bankruptcy Court approval for $118
thousand.

Following a revised Court ruling, the Company
reduced its litigation accrual by $2.5 million during
the fourth quarter 2001.

15. SU BSEQU E NT EVE NTS

In November 2003, the Company repurchased $89
million of its 7.20% notes due in 2005. As a result of
this debt repurchase, the Company will record a pre-tax
charge of approximately $2.8 million.

Also, in November 2003, the Company issued $200
million of fixed rate notes due in November 2013. The
interest rate is 5.625%. Interest is payable semiannually.
The Company had entered into an interest rate lock,
resulting in an effective rate of 5.644%.
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Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Commercial Metals Company
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of
Commercial Metals Company and subsidiaries at
August 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consoli-
dated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended August 31, 2003. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan-
cial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audit-
ing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial state-
ments present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Commercial Metals Company and
subsidiaries at August 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2003
in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Dallas, Texas
November 5, 2003 (November 13, 2003, as to Note 15)

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

COMMERCIAL METALS COMPANY DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Board of Directors (left to right) 

Corporate Officers (left to right)

A. Leo Howell
Vice President, CMC; 
Howell Metal Company–
President; Chairman of 
Management Committee; 1

Anthony A. Massaro
Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer, 
The Lincoln Electric Company, 
Cleveland, Ohio; Chairman of
Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee; 3, 4

Clyde P. Selig
Vice President, CMC; 
CMC Steel Group–President
and Chief Executive Officer; 1

Robert D. Neary
Retired Co-Chairman 
of Ernst & Young, 
Cleveland, Ohio; 2, 3, 4

Moses Feldman
President, AeroMed, Inc.
Hatfield, Pennsylvania; 
2, 3, 4

Dorothy G. Owen
Chairman-Emeritus,
Owen Steel Company, Inc. 
Columbia, South Carolina; 2, 4

Stanley A. Rabin
Chairman of the Board, 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer; 1

Robert R. Womack
Retired Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer 
of Zurn Industries, Inc., 
Addison, Texas; 
Chairman of Audit Committee;
2, 4

Ralph E. Loewenberg
President, 
R.E. Loewenberg Capital 
Management Corporation,
New York, NY; 
Chairman of Compensation
Committee; 3, 4

David M. Sudbury
Vice President, 
Secretary and 
General Counsel

William B. Larson
Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer

Jimmy R. Hodges
Assistant Controller

Louis A. Federle
Treasurer

Malinda G. Passmore
Controller

1 Member of the Management Committee
2 Member of the Audit Committee
3 Member of the Compensation Committee
4 Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
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CMC Steel Group

STE E L MAN U FACTU R I NG

SMI Steel-Alabama
101 South 50th St.
Birmingham, AL 35212

SMI Steel-Arkansas
P. O. Box 1147
Magnolia, AR 71754

SMI Steel South Carolina
310 New State Road
Cayce, SC 29033

SMI-Texas
P. O. Box 911
Seguin, TX 78156

STE E L FAB R ICATION 

AN D WAR E HOUSI NG

ABC Coating of North Carolina
2528 N. Chester
Gastonia, NC 28053

Alamo Steel Company
2784 Old Dallas Road
Waco, TX 76705

Allegheny Heat Treating
P. O. Box U
Chicora, PA 16025

C&M Steel
10312 Almond Avenue
Fontana, CA 92335

CMC Steel Fabricators, Inc.
P. O. Box 911
Seguin, TX 78156

Capitol City Steel Company
900 North IH 35
Buda, TX 78610

Capitol Steel
2655 N. Foster Dr.
Baton Rouge, LA 70805

Capitol Steel-Slidell
P. O. Box 3219
Slidell, LA 70459

Cary Engineering
534 Old Howell Road
Greenville, SC 29615

CoMet McKinney
2202 McKinney St.
Melissa, TX 75454

CoMet Steel
4846 Singleton Blvd.
Dallas, TX 75212

D&G Enterprises
10792 Leslie Road
San Antonio, TX 78254

Dunn Del Re Steel
353 S. Washington
Chandler, AZ 85225

E.L. Wills
2914 N. Argyle
Fresno, CA 93727

Fontana Steel
12451 Arrow Route
Etiwanda, CA 91739

Fontana Steel
2375 West March Lane
Stockton, CA 95207

Houston Steel Service Company
7077 Fairbanks North Houston
Houston, TX 77040

Impact Metal Products
7129 Gadsden Highway
Suite 107
Trussville, AL 35173

Safety Railway Service
Hwy. 59 @ Aloe Field
Victoria, TX 77901

Safety Steel Service
6802 Safety Steel Drive
Corpus Christi, TX 78414

Safety Steel Service
255 Skytop Road
Victoria, TX 77901

SMI Florida Fabricators– Ft. Myers
2665 Prince St.
Ft. Myers, FL 33916

SMI Florida Fabricators –
Jacksonville
10483 General Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32220

SMI Georgia Rebar
251 Hosea Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30046

SMI Joist Company
3565 U.S. Hwy. 32N
Hope, AR 71801

SMI Joist Florida
P. O. Box 310
Starke, FL 32091

SMI Joist Iowa
1120 Commercial Street
Iowa Falls, IA 50126

SMI Joist Nevada
8200 Woolery Way
Fallon, NV 89406

SMI Joist South Carolina
850 Taylor Street
Cayce, SC 29033

SMI Rebar North Carolina
2528 N. Chester St.
Gastonia, NC 28052

SMI Rebar South Carolina
2105 S. Beltline Blvd.
Columbia, SC 29201

SMI Rebar Virginia
9434 Crossroads Parkway
Fredericksburg, VA 22408

SMI Rebar Virginia-Farmville
300 SMI Way
Farmville, VA 23901

SMI Steel Products
P. O. Box 2099
Hope, AR 71802

SMI Valley Steel
2120 Industrial Crossways
Harlingen, TX 78550

South Carolina Steel
113 East Warehouse Ct.
Taylors, SC 29687

South Metro Rebar
6031 LaGrange Blvd. S.W.
Atlanta, GA 30336

Southern Post Company
P. O. Box 1147
Magnolia, AR 71754

Southern Post-South 
Carolina
1540 Pine Ridge Dr.
West Columbia, SC 29172

Southern Post-Texas
440 Wonder World Drive
San Marcos, TX 78666

Southern Post-Utah
920 W. 600 North
Brigham City, UT 84302

Southern States Steel 
Company
9675 Walden Road
Beaumont, TX 77707

Spray Forming International
310 New State Road
Cayce, SC 29033

Sterling Steel Company
2001 Brittmoore Road
Houston, TX 77043

Texas Cold Finished Steel
235 Portwall Street
Houston, TX 77029

CONSTR UCTION- R E LATE D 

P RODUCTS

Construction Materials, Inc.
4212 N. Bolton Avenue
Alexandria, LA 71303

Construction Materials, Inc.
18909 Highland Road
Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Construction Materials, Inc.
600 St. George Street
New Orleans, LA 70121

Construction Materials, Inc.
2135 McClellan Street
Shreveport, LA 71103

Construction Materials, Inc.
3310 East Napoleon
Sulphur, LA 70664

Construction Materials, Inc.
3408 A Avenue
Gulfport, MS 39507

Construction Materials, Inc.
338 Distribution Drive
Madison, MS 39110

Damco
1851 Country Club Drive
Jackson, MS 39209

Shepler’s
1100 Central Florida Parkway
Orlando, FL 32837

Shepler’s
5316 E. Henry Avenue
Tampa, FL 33610

Shepler’s
2740 Azalea Drive
Charleston, SC 29405

Shepler’s
99 North Tyler
Amarillo, TX 79101

Shepler’s
4123 Todd Lane
Austin, TX 78744

Shepler’s
580-A Graham Rd.
College Station, TX 77845

Shepler’s
2309 N. Frazier
Conroe, TX 77303

Shepler’s
301 45th Street
Corpus Christi, TX 78405

Commercial Metals Company and Subsidiaries

OPERATIONS
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Shepler’s
4844 Singleton Boulevard
Dallas, TX 75212

Shepler’s
9103 E. Almeda Road
Houston, TX 77054

Shepler’s
2001 Brittmoore Road
Houston, TX 77043

Shepler’s
513 32nd Street
Lubbock, TX 79404

Shepler’s
Hwy. 281 & East Owassa
Pharr, TX 78577

Shepler’s
3203 South IH 35
Round Rock, TX 78664

Shepler’s
4911 Whirlwind Drive
San Antonio, TX 78217

Shepler’s
2701 E. 77 Sunshine
San Benito, TX 78586

Shepler’s
3430 First Avenue South
Texas City, TX 77590

Shepler’s/Everglades
6991 Southwest 8th Street
Miami, FL 33144

Shepler’s SMI Supply
500 Huger St.
Columbia, SC 29201

Shepler’s Symons 
6665 No. Washington Street
Denver, CO 80229

RAI L  SALVAG E

SMI Rail
P. O. Box 911
Seguin, TX 78156

SC R AP P R O C E SSI NG

AMP Recycling
1704 Howard Lane
Austin, TX 78728

CMC-Augusta
1890 Old Savannah Rd.
Augusta, GA 30901

CMC-Cayce
603 Godley Street
Cayce, SC 29033

CMC-Florence
220 W. Ashby Road
Florence, SC 29501

CMC-Lexington
2308 Two Notch Road
Lexington, SC 29072

CMC-North Augusta
1119 Atomic Road
North Augusta, SC 29841

CMC-Spartanburg
7931 Valley Falls Road
Spartanburg, SC 29303

Commercial Metals-Austin Inc.
710 Industrial Blvd.
Austin, TX 78745

Horowitz Salvage
1558 N. Austin St.
Seguin, TX 78155

SMI-Texas
P. O. Box 911
Seguin, TX 78156

C O P P E R TU B E 

MAN U FAC TU R I NG

Howell Metal Company
State Route 728
New Market, VA 22844

Recycling

SE C O N DARY M ETALS 

P R O C E SSI NG

Aaron Scrap Metals
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
P. O. Box 607069
Orlando, FL 32860-7069

Feeder Yard: Palm Bay, FL

All American Recycling
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
4351 W. Hwy. 40
Ocala, FL 34482

American Iron & Metal 
Company
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
2215 South Good-Latimer
Dallas, TX 75226

Feeder Yard: Waco, TX

Commercial-Levin
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
2600 Park Road Extension 
Burlington, NC 27215

Commercial Metals Company
5250 College Street
Beaumont, TX 77707

Commercial Metals Company
400 E. 20th St.
Chattanooga, TN 37408

Feeder Yard: Chattanooga, TN

Commercial Metals Company
215 Mockingbird
Clute, TX 77531

Commercial Metals Company
4614 Agnes Street (Hwy. 44)
Corpus Christi, TX 78405

Feeder Yard: Laredo, TX

Commercial Metals Company
601 North Throckmorton
Fort Worth, TX 76106

Commercial Metals Company
71st and Broadway Streets
Galveston, TX 77551

Commercial Metals Company
2160 Harbor Street
Houston, TX 77020

Commercial Metals Company
2015 Quitman Street
Houston, TX 77026

Commercial Metals Company
2038 North Lane Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32254

Feeder Yard: Lake City, FL

Commercial Metals Company
12th & Iowa Streets
Joplin, Missouri 64802

Feeder Yards: Frontenac, KS
Independence, KS
Miami, OK

Commercial Metals Company
Interstate 27 & County Rd. 58
Lubbock, TX 79401

Commercial Metals Company
3501 West Second Street
Odessa, Texas 79763

Feeder Yard: Odessa, TX

Commercial Metals Company
634 E. Phelps
Springfield, MO 65806

Feeder Yard: Springfield, MO

Commercial Metals Company
1900 N. 62nd Street
Tampa, FL 33619

Commercial Metals Company
398 Industrial Park Drive
Victoria, TX 77905

Commercial Metals Company
8230 Doniphan Dr.
Vinton, TX 79821

Liberty 
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
1729 North Westmoreland Rd.
Dallas, TX 75212

Feeder Yard: Shreveport, LA

Sun State Recycling
1508 N.W. 55th Place
Gainesville, FL 32653

Sun State Recycling of Ocala
7100 N.W. Gainesville Rd.
Ocala, FL 34475

Marketing and 
Distribution

NORTH AM E R ICA

Cometals
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
2050 Center Avenue
Suite 250
Fort Lee, NJ 07024

Commonwealth Metal
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
560 Sylvan Avenue
Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632

Dallas Trading
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
1929 South 6th Avenue
Arcadia, CA 91006

Dallas Trading
Division Commercial 
Metals Company
6565 N. MacArthur Blvd.
Suite 800
Irving, TX 75039
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E U ROP E

CMC (Europe) AG
Lindenstrasse 14
CH-6340, Baar
Switzerland

CMC (International) AG
Lindenstrasse 14
CH-6340, Baar
Switzerland

CMC (UK) Limited
Unit 1, Bradwall Court
Bradwall Road
Sandbach, Cheshire CW11 1GE
United Kingdom

Commercial Metals 
Deutschland GmbH
Sattlerweg 8
D-51429 Bergisch Gladbach
Germany

Commercial Metals
(International) AG
Lindenstrasse 14
CH-6340, Baar
Switzerland

AS IA

CMC China Limited
Room 3105, 31/F, Metro Plaza
183 Tian He Bei Road
Guangzhou, Guangdong
China 510073

CMC Fareast Limited
Unit C, 12th Floor
128 Gloucester Road
Hong Kong

CMC International 
(S.E. Asia) Pte. Limited
#03-03 Central Plaza
298 Tiong Bahru Road
Singapore 168730

AU STR AL IA

CMC (Australia) Pty., Limited
Level 5, 4-8 Woodville Street
Hurstville, Sydney N.S.W. 2220
Australia

CMC (Australia) Pty., Limited
1st Floor, 425-427 
Riversdale Road
Hawthorn East, Melbourne
Victoria 3123 
Australia

CMC (Australia) Pty., Limited
2 Draper Place
Kewdale, Perth WA 6105
Australia

CMC (Australia) Pty., Limited
Tomago Heat Treatment Plant
2/13 Old Punt Road
Tomago, N.S.W. 2322 
Australia

Coil Steels Group
Pty Limited
16 Harbord Street
Granville, Sydney NSW 2142
Australia

Coil Steels Group
Pty Limited
32 Howleys Road
Notting Hill, Melbourne
Victoria 3168
Australia

Coil Steels Group
Pty Limited
121 Evans Road
Salisbury
Brisbane, Queensland 4107
Australia

Coil Steels Group
Pty Limited
2 Draper Place
Kewdale, Perth WA 6105
Australia

Coil Steels Group
Pty Limited
301 Hansen Road
Wingfield, Adelaide SA 5013
Australia

R E P R E S E NTATIVE O FF IC ES

CMC Cometals, Inc.
Room 500, 27 B. 
Kommunisticheskaya Str.
Moscow 109004 Russia

Cometals China, Inc.
Unit 2818, South Tower
Beijing Kerry Centre
1 GuangHua Road, 
ChaoYang District
Beijing 100020 China

JO I NT VE NTU R E OFF IC E S

CMC-Trinec Stahlhandel GmbH
Sattlerweg 8
D-51429 Bergisch Gladbach
Germany

Europickling N.V.
I.Z. Durmakker
B-9940 Evergem
Belgium

Trinec-CMC Limited
5, Bradwall Court, 
Bradwall Road
Sandbach, Cheshire 
CW11 1GE
United Kingdom

AG E NTS

Athens, Greece
Auckland, New Zealand
Bangkok, Thailand
Bucharest, Romania
Buenos Aires, Argentina
Cairo, Egypt
Caracas, Venezuela
Delhi, India
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Istanbul, Turkey
Jakarta, Indonesia
Kaohsiung, Taiwan
Lisbon, Portugal
Manila, Philippines
Milan, Italy
Moscow, Russia
Sao Paulo, Brazil
Seoul, Korea
Shanghai, China
Sosnowiec, Poland
Temse, Belgium
Tokyo, Japan

Div is ions  and 
Subs id iar ies

Manufacturing

C MC STE E L G ROU P

Clyde P. Selig
President & Chief 
Executive Officer

Russell Rinn
Steel Group President,
West Division

Jeff H. Selig
Steel Group President,
East Division

H. Avery Hilton, Jr.
Executive Vice President

Binh K. Huynh
Executive Vice President

HOWE LL M ETAL C OM PANY

A. Leo Howell
President

James K. Forkovitch
Vice President

Willard G. Williams
Controller

Recycling

SECON DARY M ETALS 

P ROC ESSI NG D IVIS ION

Harry J. Heinkele
President

Rocky Adams
Vice President - South Texas

Chuck Grossman
Vice President - Southeast U.S.A.

Robert J. Melendi
Vice President - 
Marketing & Sales

Carl J. Nastoupil
Vice President & Controller

Larry Olschwanger
Vice President - 
National Accounts

Alan Postel
Vice President - North Texas

Jim Vermillion
Vice President - Central U.S.A.

Joseph R. Reichard
Chief Engineer

Richard L. Goulde
MIS Director



69

Marketing and 
Distribution

Murray R. McClean
President

COM ETAL S D IVIS ION 

COM M E RC IAL M ETAL S C OM PANY

Eliezer Skornicki
President

John Rothschild
Executive Vice President

Matthew Lionetti
Controller

Dennis C. Gates
Vice President

Joel D. Kahn
Vice President

Jeffrey L. Kofsky
Vice President

Manfred R. Roeschel
Vice President

Sergei Frolov
Director, CMC Cometals, Inc.

Weston Liu
Vice President, Cometals;
General Manager, 
Cometals China, Inc.

COM MONWEALTH M ETAL

DIVIS ION COM M E RC IAL M ETAL S

COM PANY

Eugene L. Vastola
President

Greg Barczy
Vice President, Technical Director

Richard Conk
Vice President of Finance
and Controller

Charles J. Schaffer
Vice President

Steven E. Shur
Vice President

DALLAS TR AD I NG D IVI S I ON

J. Matthew Kramer
President

Albert Lee
General Manager, Steel Trading

Joseph D. McNamara
Manager, Steel Trading

Michael Jackson
Manager, Nonferrous Products

Theresa Mishler
Manager, Trading Services

Tom Cargill
Asst. Manager, Traffic

Mike Neece
Controller

I NTE R NATI O NAL D IVI S I O N

AS IA AN D AU STR AL IA

Kevin S. Aitken
President

Stephen Pearson
Commercial Director
CMC (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Mark Morrison
General Manager - Steel
CMC (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Mark Brennan
Manager, Engineering Steels
CMC (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Colin Iles
General Manager, Cometals, 
a division of CMC 
(Australia) Pty. Ltd.

John Paterson
General Manager - Business
Development, Cometals, 
a division of CMC 
(Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Peter Muller
Managing Director
Coil Steels Group

Peter Cook
Director and 
Chief Financial Officer
Coil Steels Group

Jimmy Dee
Director, CMC Fareast Ltd.

Kai Leung Chan
General Manager, CMC International
(S.E. Asia) Pte. Ltd.

I NTE R NATIONAL D IVIS ION

E U ROP E

Hanns Zöllner
President

Ruedi Auf der Maur
Managing Director
Product Manager-Steel

Hans-Ruedi Meuwly
Controller

Roland Wismer
Treasurer

Peter Weyermann
General Manager
CMC (Europe) AG
CMC (International) AG

Richard Adams
Managing Director,
CMC (UK) Ltd.

Klaus Marschall
General Manager
Commercial Metals 
Deutschland GmbH

Peter Birkhäuser
Manager-Steel Trading
Commercial Metals 
Deutschland GmbH

Corporate Information

TR AN SFE R AG E NT 

AN D R EG ISTR AR

Mellon Investor
Services, LLC
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
(800) 635-9270
www.melloninvestor.com

AU DITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Dallas, Texas

AN N UAL M E ETI NG

January 22, 2004
10:00 A.M. C.S.T.
Four Seasons Conference Facility
4150 N. MacArthur Blvd.
Irving, Texas

STOC K E XC HAN G E L ISTI NG

New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: CMC

EXEC UTIVE O FF IC ES

6565 N. MacArthur Blvd.
Suite 800
Irving, Texas 75039
Telephone: (214) 689-4300

FOR M 10- K

Copies of the Corporation’s
Form 10-K are available from
Secretary
Commercial Metals Company
P. O. Box 1046
Dallas, Texas 75221-1046

WE B S ITE

www.commercialmetals.com
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SCULPTURES FROM CMC’S 25TH ANNUAL “SCRAP CAN BE BEAUTIFUL” CONTEST. 

STUDENTS CREATED THE ARTWORK USING METAL COLLECTED AT A CMC SCRAP PROCESSING FACILITY.



Commercial Metals Company     6565 N. MacArthur Blvd.     Irving, Texas 75039     www.commercialmetals.com
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Commercial Metals Company and subsidiaries manufacture, recycle and market steel and metal

products and related materials through a network of over 140 locations. The Manufacturing group

includes 4 steel minimills, 30 steel fabrication plants, 5 steel joist plants, a castellated and cellular

beam fabrication plant, 4 steel fence post manufacturing plants, a heat treating plant, a railcar

rebuilding facility, 28 construction-related product warehouses, a railroad salvage company and a

copper tube mill. Recycling operations include 44 metal processing plants across the Sunbelt.

Through its network of 15 marketing and distribution offices, 4 processing facilities and other

investments and joint ventures around the world, the Company markets, distributes and processes

primary and secondary metals, steel, ores, concentrates, industrial minerals, ferroalloys, chemicals

and industrial products used in a variety of industries.

COMMERCIAL

METALS
COMPANY
AN N UAL  R E P O RT  2003




